Neath Port Talbot AGENDA

== (astell-nedd Port Talbot

County Borough Council Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol

COUNCIL SUMMONS
To all Members of Council
You are hereby summoned to attend a
MEETING OF THE COUNCIL
to be held at 2.00 pm on
WEDNESDAY 25 July 2018
in the

COUNCIL CHAMBER - PORT TALBOT CIVIC CENTRE

Prayers will be said by the Mayor’s Chaplain prior to the
commencement of the meeting.

--AGENDA -
PART A
1. Mayor's Announcements.
2.  Declarations of Interest

3.  To receive and, if thought fit, confirm the Minutes of the previous
meeting of Council:

Civic Year 2018/19 30 May 2018
PART B

4.  Statement by the Cabinet Member for Community Safety and
Public Protection on the Minimum Unit Pricing Policy




5. City Deal (Pages 7 - 96)
(@) City Deal Scrutiny Arrangements

6.  Statement on the Task and Finish Group Action Plan on the
Valleys'

7. Membership Arrangements (Pages 97 - 102)
PART C

8.  To receive the following-and any questions raised by Members, or
any matters to be raised by Cabinet Members:- (Pages 103 - 136)

Record of Executive Decisions of the Cabinet and Cabinet Boards.
PART D

9. Toreceive any questions from Members, with Notice, under Rule
9.2 of the Council's Procedure Rules.

10. Any urgent items (whether public or exempt) at the discretion of the

Mayor pursuant to Section 100B (4) (b) of the Local Government
Act 1972.

S
=

Chief Executive

Civic Centre
Port Talbot Thursday, 19 July 2018



Members Present:

The Mayor:

Councillors:

Officers in
Attendance:

Representatives of
the Translation
Service:

Agenda Annex
-77 -

COUNCIL

(Civic Centre, Port Talbot)

30 May, 2018

Councillor D.Keogh

A.R.Aubrey, S.Bamsey, D.Cawsey, H.C.Clarke,
C.Clement-Williams, S. ap Dafydd,
A.P.H.Davies, D.W.Davies, O.S.Davies,
R.Davies, J.Evans, S.E.Freeguard,
C.Galsworthy, W.F.Griffiths, J.Hale, S.Hatrris,
M.Harvey, N.T.Hunt, S.K.Hunt, C.James,
H.N.James, C.J.Jones, D.Jones, R.G.Jones,
E.V.Latham, A.Llewelyn, A.R.Lockyer,
A.McGrath, R.Mizen, J.D.Morgan, S.Paddison,
S.M.Penry, D.M.Peters, M.Protheroe,
L.M.Purcell, S.Pursey, S.Rahaman, P.A.Rees,
S.Renkes, S.H.Reynolds, A.J.Richards,
P.D.Richards, A.J.Taylor, R.L.Taylor,
A.L.Thomas, J.Warman, D.Whitelock,
R.W.Wood and A.N.Woolcock

S.Philips, A.Evans, H.Jenkins, C.Griffiths,
K.Jones, A.Manchipp snd J.Woodman Ralph

Present

1. MAYOR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS.

It was with great sadness that the Mayor advised Council that former
Councillor Pam Thomas had recently passed away. Mrs Thomas had
been Mayor of the County Borough for 2009/10.

As a mark of respect Council stood for a minute’s silence.

300518

Page 3



- 78 -

THE LEADER OF COUNCIL'S INAUGURAL SPEECH

The Leader of Council, Councillor R.G Jones, gave Council his
inaugural speech.

The Leader confirmed that since he was elected Leader of Council he
had undertaken to meet with Leaders of the Opposition Groups to
exchange information about key issues. Cabinet Members had been
encouraged to bring before Council matters that fell within their
portfolios.

In addition, the scrutiny function within the Council had further
developed and strengthened. Members of Council had been involved
in the development of the Corporate Plan. The Valleys’ Task and
Finish Group had been convened to look at issues within valley
communities and draft proposals had been shared with the
Leadership.

Partnership working has been strengthened. A work programme had
been developed with the local voluntary sector so that both sectors
can work together on shared priorities.

All of this demonstrated an inclusive approach to Council business.

The Leader confirmed that the focus had and would continue to be on
ensuring that the priorities contained within the Corporate Plan would
be delivered for the benefit of communities.

A report on the Authority’s performance for 2017-18 would be brought
before Council shortly.

The Leader highlighted the emphasis for the next 12 months which
included:

e To extend the Digital Programme. A revised Digital Strategy
would be brought for Members’ consideration before the
summer recess;

e To further investigate ways to generate additional income.

e Details of a pilot project seeking to identify new and different
ways in which the Council can work with communities;

e A further report on the City Deal;

e The next Phase of the 21 Century Schools programme would
be brought forward which would include the outcome of the
consultation on education provision for the Afan Valley;

300518 P ag e 4



- 79 -

Work would continue to progress the work started at Pantteg:
A range of announcements would be made in relation to
regeneration projects.

The Leader also confirmed that as a result of issues raised in the
Budget process last year, some specific issues would be revisited:

A proposal would be brought forward for consideration in regard
to developing Tourism in the County Borough;

Proposals from the Friends Group at Pontardawe Arts Centre
were awaited;

Further input was also awaited in relation to Cefn Coed
Museum;

Proposals from the Valleys Task and Finish Group had been
received in draft form. Consideration would be given on how to
progress;

The Budget Strategy for 2019-20 would be initiated prior to the
summer recess. This would enable Members to be briefed on
the forecast for the next financial year and beyond with specific
budget proposals subsequently being progressed through the
autumn period. Members were asked to submit any ideas for
saving money or raising income as early as possible so that
they could be included in the budget process.

The Leader thanked his Cabinet Members, all Members of
Council, staff and the Chief Executive for all the work that had
been undertaken throughout the year. In addition, the Leader
thanked all partners for their support.

Both Leaders of the opposition parties were supportive of the
issues that were covered by the Leader and emphasised the many
challenges the Council faced in setting future budgets.

RESOLVED: That the Leader’s inaugural speech be

noted.

THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT REORGANISATION/GREEN PAPER

RESPONSE

Council was provided with a briefing on the Welsh Government’s
Green Paper “Strengthening Local Government, Delivering for
People” issued on 20 March 2018 as detailed in Appendix 1 to the
circulated report and the terms of a proposed response.

300518

Page 5



-80 -

Members were supportive of the response to the Green Paper and
asked that a copy of the report be appended to the letter that was
proposed to be sent to the Cabinet Secretary.

RESOLVED: That the proposed response from Neath Port
Talbot County Borough Council to the Cabinet
Secretary for Local Government and Public
Services be approved and that a copy of
today’s report be appended to the letter.

CHANGES TO THE COMMITTEE CYCLE

RESOLVED: That the proposed changes to the Committee Cycle
for 2018/19, as contained in the circulated report,
be approved.

MEMBERSHIP OF THE STANDARDS COMMITTEE

Council received an addendum to the report of the Head of Legal
Services on the proposed Membership of the Standards Committee
following the interviews carried out on the 29 May 2018.
RESOLVED: That the following candidates be appointed as
independent members to the Standards
Committee:
Louise Fleet

Tom Ward

CHAIRPERSON

300518 P ag e 6



Agenda Iltem 5

NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
COUNCIL
25 July 2018
Report of the Chief Executive
SWANSEA BAY CITY DEAL
Matter for Decision
Wards Affected: All

SECTION A

Purpose of Report

1. To provide Members at Full Council with further background on the
City Deal following decisions taken by Cabinet on 27 June 2018.

Background

2. Previous reports - listed as background documents below - provided
Members with advice on the progress of negotiations. The key factors
that conditioned our approach are again discussed briefly in this
report; but essentially the two governments have now agreed a final
version of the JWA which is satisfactory and contains other necessary
safeguards. The written confirmations from both governments are
listed as background documents.

3. Upon its signature by all four Councils, the agreement would formally
establish a Joint Committee. The Joint Committee has no separate
legal identity and so cannot own property, accept grants or enter into
contracts in its own right. It is proposed that one authority, namely
Carmarthenshire County Council, will act as the ‘Accountable Body’.
As the Accountable Body, Carmarthenshire Council will take
responsibility for employment of the staff directly affected, enter any
third party agreements required and provide all support services
required by the Joint Committee.

Page 7



4. The full text of the JWA is at Appendix 1*. From our perspective, the
key elements are as follows:

Even though neither the UK nor Welsh Governments are
formally party to the agreement, Recital E contains a very clear
public commitment (from both effectively) to deal with the key
financial issues of a 50% retention of non-domestic rates
generated by City Deal projects and access to revenue funding.
On this latter point — and in addition to the relevant clauses in
the JWA - the Welsh Government has issued guidance (at
Appendix 2 together with supporting correspondence)
permitting local authorities to use capital receipts received
during each financial year from 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2022
to fund revenue costs for defined qualifying expenditure (i.e.
City Deal projects). This is key in terms of delivering the
CENGS project — see below - as discussed in previous reports;

Section 12 deals with the process for funding projects regionally
including the interaction with the Economic Strategy Board —
see also Schedule 6 in that regard. The terms of reference/
membership arrangements for the Joint Committee and the
Programme Board (Chief Executives) are to be found at
Schedules 1 and 2 respectively;

Sections 13 and 14 cover borrowing and other sources of
funding respectively. These provisions should also be read
against Schedule 5 which reserves certain matters to individual
Councils. The key point is that paragraphs 2 and 3 of this
Schedule reserve decisions on funding projects in their
administrative area to the Council concerned. This is a key
safeguard and our approach will be to submit all business cases
for Member approval;

Section 19 deals with the administration costs of the City Deal
and Section 20 the Audit and Scrutiny dimensions (NB this
Council is the designated lead on Scrutiny; but these
arrangements are the subject of a separate report to Council);
and

! Given its length, the document is available to Members electronically; but hard copies are available
from Democratic Services on request.

Page 8



Section 22 provides that any Council withdrawing from the
agreement must give a minimum of 12 months’ notice — a
standard provision in agreements of this type which mirrors, for
example, that of the Joint Committee overseeing the regional
school improvement consortium.

Projects

5. The issues central to this report are governance and financial
matters, not the projects themselves. As noted above, they will be the
subject of full business cases to be submitted to Members for
determination in due course. However, for completeness brief project
descriptions are included for reference below. The first three are
within the County Borough and the other three are regional projects:

Steel Science/National Innovation Centre: This will focus on
providing commercial R&D to address the current and future
challenges of sustaining steel-making capacity in the region and
the UK. In doing so, it will work with industry to reduce its
carbon footprint and support for the developments in the steel
supply chain and downstream operations.

Factory of the Future: To support and continue to build the
region’s strong manufacturing base, this initiative will create a
network of smart manufacturing innovation centres which will
provide SMEs with an opportunity to invest in leading edge
technologies.

Centre for Excellence in Next Generation Digital Services:
The Centre aims to act as a systems and solutions hub.
Operating from a purpose-built facility which will offer
incubation, laboratory and second stage space, the Centre will
bridge the gap between research and innovation and the ability
to launch, develop and grow commercial opportunities. It is
based on a proven model operating in Canada.

Homes as Power Stations: New technologies allow buildings
to generate, store and release energy and this programme
seeks to undertake an extensive new house build and retrofit
programme which integrates such technologies, addressing
other issues such as fuel poverty and more sustainable homes.
This Council is host to the first project in the region (in Neath).

Page 9



e Digital Infrastructure: The partnership is exploring the demand
and investment case for the provision of state of the art digital
infrastructure for the region that will underpin all interventions
within the City Deal.

e Skills and Talent Initiative: This seeks to ensure the creation,
attraction and retention of a workforce equipped to deliver each
of the City Deal interventions. It will focus on a number of
strands including advanced skills, HE/FE provision,
apprenticeships and school engagement amongst others to
contribute to an uplift in productivity across the wider economy.

6. Discussions are ongoing with partners in respect of developing the
business cases further. Once complete, these will be submitted to
Members for approval and be subject to the appraisal and evaluation
process outlined in the Joint Working Agreement.

Financial Implications/Risk

7. As previously reported, these matters were the major sticking point
for us previously in the context of securing a Capitalisation Direction
or equivalent mechanism. The last report (dated 25 April 2018)
contained a series of tables and analysis which demonstrated a
potential additional cost of borrowing to this Council over the life of
the City Deal of more than £21million had the issues not been
resolved. In addition, Members will note the reference to the initial
contribution of £50,000 per annum that the Council will be
contributing to the running costs for years 1-5, which has been
referenced in previous reports.

8. However, we are now satisfied that what is on the table represents a
fair balance of risk/reward if the business cases prove robust and
affordable. For completeness, revised projections of this Council’s
borrowing costs over the life of the City Deal is at Appendix 3. This
illustrates that the residual cost/cost of borrowing is now estimated to
be reduced to some £6.3 million.

Page 10



Sustainable Development

9. The Future Generations and Wellbeing Act 2015 aims to make public
bodies think more about the long-term, work better with people and
communities and each other, look to prevent problems and take a
more joined-up approach. The Act places duties upon public bodies
and given the importance of the City Deal and the establishment of
the Joint Committee, it is essential that the Future Generations and
Wellbeing Act is given due consideration in reaching a decision
whether to sign the JWA.

10. The Future Generations Commissioner has outlined clearly
expectations that the City Deal will need to be based on evidence of
its contribution to the well-being goals identified in the Act. The City
Deal seeks to reflect the key tenets of the Act to deliver sustainable
iImprovement in the performance of the City Region’s economy and,
for illustrative purposes, an “impact grid” is at Appendix 4. This
attempts to assess the Act’s goals and ways of working against the
overarching strands of the City Deal. It is inevitably subjective at this
stage (particularly so given that most business cases remain under
development); but the circles on the grid denote those areas where
the City Deal is likely to have the greatest impact. Thus it is included
as a starting point for this policy dimension of the City Deal.

Legal Implications

11. There are a number of legal powers available to the Councils to
facilitate the proposed collaboration and creation of the Joint
Committee. These include Sections 101 and 102 of the Local
Government Act 1972, sections 19 and 20 of the Local Government
Act 2000, section 9 of the Local Government Wales Measure 2009
and Local Authorities (Goods and Services) Act 1970.

12. These powers include the ability to delegate functions, the ability
for two or more authorities to discharge any of their functions jointly,
and where this occurs, to do so via a Joint Committee and the ability
to supply administrative professional and technical services jointly.

Workforce Implications/Equality Impact Assessment

13. None/not required at this stage.

Page 11



Cabinet Scrutiny & Cabinet Decisions

14. A report was received and discussed on 27 June 2018. Following
a full discussion the Cabinet resolved as follows:

e That the Leader of Council, in consultation with the Deputy Leader
and the Cabinet Members for Finance and the Cabinet Member for
Regeneration and Sustainable Development, be given delegated
authority to enter into the Joint Working Agreement. This is subject
only to the other three local authorities doing likewise taking
account of any minor amendments which may prove necessary
and do not alter the substance of the document enclosed at
Appendix 1 to the circulated report;

e That the Chief Executive be appointed as the Council’s
representative on the City Deal Programme Board and delegate to
him authority to appoint a deputy to represent the Authority as
necessary (this would ordinarily be the Director of the Environment
or the Director of Finance and Corporate Services);

e That the Chief Executive, in consultation with the Leader of
Council and the Cabinet Member for Finance, be given delegated
authority to apply for and accept funding for City Deal projects on
behalf of the Council and deal with other ancillary matters on the
same basis;

e That this report be referred to full Council for further discussion
given the potentially significant impact of the proposal on the
Council’s long term budget framework.

RECOMMENDATION

1. The Leader of Council is appointed as the Council’s representative
on the City Deal Joint Committee and Economic Strategy Board
and authority is delegated to him to appoint a deputy to represent
the Council as in these forums as required.

Reasons for proposed decision
To invite Members to appoint the Council’s representative to the City

Deal Joint Committee on the basis of the authority previously provided to
sign the Joint Working Agreement.

Page 12



Implementation of the decision

The decision is proposed for implementation after the 3 day call in
period.

Appendices

Appendix 1: Joint Working Agreement (JWA) — available electronically
via ModernGov

Appendix 2: Welsh Government Guidance on the Flexible Use of Capital
Receipts (available via this link:
https://gov.wales/topics/localgovernment/finandfunding/capitalisation-
directions/?lang=en)

Appendix 3: Revised Projected City Deal Borrowing Costs
Appendix 4: Future Generations Act/City Deal — “Impact Grid”
Background Documents

Report of the Chief Executive: 4 October 2017

Report of the Chief Executive: 25 April 2018

Report of the Chief Executive: 27 June 2018

Letter from the Secretary of State for Wales to the Leader of the City and
County of Swansea: 17 June 2018

Letter from the Welsh Government Cabinet Office to Carmarthenshire
County Council: 19 June 2018

Officer Contacts:

Steven Phillips - Chief Executive
Tel No: 01639 763305 E-mail: s.phillips@npt.gov.uk

Hywel Jenkins — Director of Finance and Corporate Services
Tel No: 01639 763251 E-mail: h.jenkins@npt.gov.uk

Gareth Nutt — Director of Environment

Page 13


https://gov.wales/topics/localgovernment/finandfunding/capitalisation-directions/?lang=en
https://gov.wales/topics/localgovernment/finandfunding/capitalisation-directions/?lang=en
mailto:s.phillips@npt.gov.uk
mailto:h.jenkins@npt.gov.uk

Tel No: 01639 686668 E-Mail: g.nutt@npt.gov.uk

Craig Griffiths — Head of Legal Services
Tel: 01639 763368 Email: c.griffiths2@npt.gov.uk

Page 14


mailto:g.nutt@npt.gov.uk
mailto:c.griffiths2@npt.gov.uk

Draft number:
Sent to: Linda Rees Jones
Date sent:11 May 2018

DATED 2018

(1) CARMARTHENSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
and

(2) NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
(3) PEMBROKESHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
(4) THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY AND COUNTY OF SWANSEA

AGREEMENT FOR THE ESTABLISHMENT OF A JOINT COMMITTEE FOR THE
SWANSEA BAY CITY REGION

Geldqrﬂs

[rm

C:5159682v19 Page 15



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24,

25.

26.

27.

28.

CONTENTS

Interpretation

Commencement and Duration

The Councils’ Obligations
Establishment of a Joint Committee
Arrangements for the discharge of functions
Appointment of the Accountable Body
Duties of the Accountable Body
Duties of the Other Councils

Regional Office

Implementation Plan

Projects Funded by The Swansea Bay City Deal
Processes for Funding Projects
Borrowing

Funding from other bodies
Sub-committees

Programme Board

Economic Strategy Board
Commitment of the Councils

Costs

Audit and Scrutiny

Mitigation

Withdrawal from this Agreement
Termination of This Agreement
Liabilities of the Councils

Dispute Resolution

Notices

Information and Confidentiality

Data Protection
C:5159682v19 Page 16

11

12

13

14

14

15

16

16

16

17

17

21

21

21

22

22

22

22

23

24

25

25

25

26

28

29

30



29. Intellectual Property

30. Freedom of Information

31. Language

32. Severability

33. Relationship of Councils

34. Third Party Rights

35. Entire Agreement

36. Law of Agreement or Jurisdiction

37. Assignment

38. Waiver

39. Counterparts

40. Discretion of the Councils

41. Withdrawal of the United Kingdom from the European Union
Schedule 1 Terms of Reference of the Joint Committee
Schedule 2 Programme Board

Schedule 3 Notices

Schedule 4 Accounting Periods

Schedule 5 Matters Reserved to The Councils
Schedule 6 Economic Strategy Board

Schedule 7 Projects Funded By the Swansea Bay City Deal
Schedule 8 Project Approval Process

Schedule 9 Flow of Funding

Schedule 10 — Change in Project Status

Schedule 11 - Welsh Government Guidance on Flexible Use of Capital Receipts

Schedule 12 Terms of Reference of Joint Scrutiny Committee

Schedule 13 Rules of Conduct of Co-opted Members of the Joint Committee and the

Economic Strategy Board

C:5159682v19 Page 17

31

32

33

33

33

34

34

34

34

34

35

35

35

38

42

45

46

47

48

51

52

54

56

57

64

65



THIS AGREEMENT IS MADE ON 2018

BETWEEN:

D Carmarthenshire County Council of County Hall, Carmarthen,
Carmarthenshire SA31 1JP (“Carmarthenshire”); and

(2) Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council of Port Talbot Civic Centre, Port
Talbot SA13 1PJ (“Neath”); and

3) Pembrokeshire County Council of County Hall, Haverfordwest,
Pembrokeshire SA61 1TP

(4) The Council of the City and County of Swansea of Civic Centre,

Oystermouth Road, Swansea SA1 3SN

(together referred to as “the Councils”)

WHEREAS:

(A)

(B)

©

(D)

(E)

The Councils have agreed to work together in order to discharge their
obligations to one another, the Welsh Government and the United Kingdom
Government (“UK Government”) to promote and facilitate projects funded under
the Swansea Bay City Deal in order to further the growth of the Swansea Bay
City Region which comprises the areas of the Councils.

The Councils have accordingly agreed to enter into this Agreement to document
and regulate their respective rights and obligations to each other and to enable
the Councils to work together to establish and to participate in a joint committee.

The Councils have agreed heads of terms with the UK Government and the
Welsh Government which set out the key elements of the Swansea Bay City
Deal the investment themes and the governance arrangements which the UK
Government and the Welsh Government expect the Councils to apply to the
Swansea Bay City Deal.

The Councils acknowledge that the Government Funding of £241 million shall
be provided to the projects in the Swansea Bay City Deal for a 15 year period
from the Commencement Date and shall be paid by the Welsh Government to
the Accountable Body.

The Welsh Government has agreed to allow the Swansea Bay City Region to
retain 50% of the additional yield in non-domestic rates generated by the
projects in the Swansea Bay City Region and has agreed to support the
Councils in enabling them to fund revenue costs of the Swansea Bay City Deal
projects. This support will be provided by allowing Councils to utilise the
flexibility in the funding methods provided by the Guidance on the Flexible Use
of Capital Receipts and reserves (documents appended at Schedule 11)

C:5159682v19 Page 18



(F) The Councils acknowledge that the Accountable Body may pay the Government
Funding to the Delivery Lead for the relevant project in the Swansea Bay City
Deal.

(G) The Councils acknowledge that the Government Funding is subject to the
following conditions: entry into this Agreement by the Councils; satisfying the
Government Reviews; further Funding Conditions approved by the Councils;
and approval of the Implementation Plan.

(H) The Councils acknowledge that the Regional Learning and Skills Partnership for
South West and Mid Wales shall have a central role to play in leading on the
strategic approach to the delivery of employment and skills in the region.

IT1S AGREED AS FOLLOWS:

1. Interpretation

1.1 The following definitions and rules of interpretation apply in this
Agreement:

“Accountable the Council appointed under clause 6.1 of this

Body” Agreement who shall be responsible for receiving and
distributing funds for and on behalf of the Councils in
relation to the Swansea Bay City Deal and whose
duties are set out in clause 7;

“Accountable Body the operational and management costs incurred by the
Costs” Accountable Body in carrying out its role of
Accountable Body;

“Accountable the officer designated by the Joint Committee in
Officer” accordance with clause 9 to manage and oversee the
work of the Regional Office staff;

“Accounting those periods set out in 0 as may be amended from

Period” time to time in accordance with the terms of this
Agreement;

“this Agreement”  this agreement entered into by Carmarthenshire

County Council, Neath Port Talbot County Borough
Council, Pembrokeshire County Council and the
Council of the City and County of Swansea ;

“Allocated Sum” the funding allocated to a project in the Swansea Bay
City Deal as recorded in its Project Business Case and
in Schedule 7 to this Agreement subject to approval of
the Project Business Case

“Annual Costs the approved annual costs budget held by the
Regional Office for and on behalf of the Councils in

C:5159682v19 Page 19



Budget”

“Applicable Law”

“Business Day”
“Commencement
Date”

“Conditions
Longstop Date”

“Confidential
Information”

“Co-opted Body”

“Co-opted Member
Protocol”

“Council
Contribution”

“Councils”

“Councils’
Obligations”

“DPA”

“DP Regulator”

C:5159682v19

relation to the payment of any Accountable Body
Costs, Economic Strategy Board Costs, Joint
Committee Costs (including Joint Scrutiny Committee
Costs, Programme Board Costs and Regional Office
Costs) in accordance with this Agreement;

means all applicable laws, statutes, regulations,
regulatory requirements, guidance and codes of
practice in any relevant jurisdiction as amended,
updated or replaced from time to time, including the
Data Protection Laws;

any day other than a Saturday or Sunday or a public or
bank holiday in Wales;

the date of this Agreement;

the date agreed by the Joint Committee by when the
Funding Conditions must be agreed by the Councils;

all know-how and other information relating to the
business, affairs or methods of all or any Council and
any other participant in the Swansea Bay City Deal
and any applicant for funding from the Swansea Bay
City Deal, which is contained in or discernible in any
form whatsoever (including without limitation software,
data, drawings, films, documents and computer-
readable media) whether or not marked or designated
as confidential or proprietary or which is disclosed
orally or by demonstration and which is described at
the time of disclosure as confidential or is clearly so
from its content or the context of disclosure;

a body from which a representative is co-opted as a
non-voting member of the Joint Committee in
accordance with Schedule 1;

the protocol agreed by the Councils specifying the
standard of conduct required of co-opted members of
the Joint Committee;

the funding provided by each Council to the Annual
Budget Costs as set out in clause 19;

Carmarthenshire County Council, Neath Port Talbot
County Borough Council, Pembrokeshire County
Council and the Council of the City and County of
Swansea and “Council” shall be construed accordingly;

the obligations set out in clause 3;

the Data Protection Act 1998;

any governmental or regulatory body or authority with
responsibility f%romonitoring or enforcing compliance

Page



“Data”

“Data Incident”

“Data Protection
Laws”

“Data Subject”

“Delivery Lead”

“Economic Strategy
Board”

“Economic Strategy
Board Costs”

“FOI Legislation”

“Funding
Conditions”

“Government
Funding”

C:5159682v19

with the Data Protection Laws;

any data, document, code, information, Personal Data
in connection with this Agreement;

the reasonable suspicion of, discovery by, or notice to
a party that (a) Data has been or is likely to be
accessed or obtained by an unauthorised person; or
(b) a party’s systems have been or are likely to be
compromised or vulnerable; or a person has
threatened the unauthorised access to or obtaining of
any Data;

any applicable laws and regulations in any relevant
jurisdiction relating to privacy or the use or processing
of Personal Data relating to natural persons, including:
(a) EU Directives 95/46/EC and 2002/58/EC (as
amended by 2009/139/EC) and any legislation
implementing or made pursuant to such directives,
including the Data Protection Act 1998 (the "DPA")
and the Privacy and Electronic Communications (EC
Directive) Regulations 2003; and (b) from 25 May 2018
EU Regulation 2016/679 ("GDPR"); (c) any laws or
regulations ratifying, implementing, adopting,
supplementing or replacing GDPR; in each case, to the
extent in force, and as such are updated, amended or
replaced from time to time; and (d) the Regulation of
Investigatory Powers Act 2000 and the
Telecommunications (Lawful Business Practice)
(Interception of Communications) Regulations 2000;

shall have the meanings set out in the DPA until 25
May 2018 and thereafter the meaning set out in the
GDPR;

the organisation responsible for the preparation and
submission of the Project Business Case for and
delivery of each project as set out in the
Implementation Plan;

the board established in accordance with clause 17
and Schedule 6;

the operational and management costs of the
Economic Strategy Board;

the Freedom of Information Act 2000 and subordinate
legislation made under this and the Environmental
Information Regulations 2004

any conditions imposed by the UK Government or the
Welsh Government for the release of the Government
Funding to be signed by the Accountable Body;

funding of £241 million to be made available to the

Swansea Bay City Deal from the UK Government and

the WelsiB Govengent consisting of £115.6 million
age



“Government
Review”

“IP Material”
“Implementation

Plan”

“Intellectual
Property”

“Internal Costs”

“Joint Committee”

“Joint Committee
Costs”

“Joint Committee
Meeting”

“Joint Committee
Withdrawal Notice”
“Joint Scrutiny

C:5159682v19

from the UK Government and £125.4 million from the
Welsh Government;

an examination carried out by the UK Government and
Welsh Government jointly periodically of projects in
the Swansea Bay City Deal in order to assess the
progress and likelihood of the Councils’ successful
delivery of the Swansea Bay City Deal such reviews to
take place no more than once in each calendar year
during the currency of this Agreement;

the Intellectual Property in the Material;

the implementation plan agreed by the Joint
Committee setting out the activities that shall support
the delivery of the Swansea Bay City Deal,

patents, rights to inventions, copyright and related
rights, trade-marks, trade names and domain names,
rights in get-up, rights in goodwill or to sue for passing
off, rights in designs, rights in computer software,
database rights, rights in confidential information
(including know-how and trade secrets), and any other
intellectual property rights, in each case whether
registered or unregistered and including all
applications (or rights to apply) for, and renewals or
extensions of, such rights and all similar or equivalent
rights or forms of protection which may now or in the
future subsist in any part of the world;

the costs associated with each Council providing
internal Council resources in relation to the Swansea
Bay City Deal which includes but is not limited to:
staffing costs and associated overheads; project
management; technical and administrative support;
communications; costs incurred in respect of managing
Requests for Information;

a committee of elected members from the Councils
which shall be responsible for ensuring and overseeing
the delivery of the functions set out in Schedule 1
(Terms of Reference of the Joint Committee) with a
view to securing their more efficient, economical and
effective discharge;

the operational and management costs of the Joint
Committee;

a meeting of the Joint Committee;
a notice issued by one of the Councils in accordance
with clause 22 to give notice of its withdrawal from the

Swansea Bay City Deal and this Agreement;

the operational and management costs of the Joint

Page 22



Committee Costs”

“Lead Chief
Executive”

“Local Authority”

“Material”

“Personal Data”

“Powers”

“PR Protocol”

C:5159682v19

Scrutiny Committee

the local authority officer designated by the Joint
Committee in accordance with clause 9 to act as
principal adviser to the Joint Committee and to
manage and oversee the work of the Regional Office
staff;

a principal council as defined in section 270 of the
Local Government Act 1972 or any body established
as a successor of a principal council;

all data, text, graphics, images and other materials or
documents created, used or supplied by a Council in
connection with this Agreement unless before the first
use or supply the Council notifies the other Councils
that the data, text supplied is not to be covered by this
definition;

shall have the meanings set out in the DPA until 25
May 2018 and thereafter the meaning set out in GDPR
for personal data governed by such laws and shall also
include “Personal Information” classified as “personal
information” or “personally identifiable information” or
similar term under the Applicable Law governing a
person’s processing of personal information about an
individual;

the powers of Welsh local authorities under:

() 101, 102, 111, 112 and 113 of the Local
Government Act 1972 and sections 19 and 20 of the
Local Government Act 2000 and the regulations made
under these Acts to make arrangements to discharge
functions jointly and to employ staff and place them at
the disposal of other local authorities;

(ii) the powers in section 9 of the Local Government
(Wales) Measure 2009 to collaborate;

(i) the well-being power in section 2 of the Local
Government Act 2000;

(iv) the incidental powers in section 111 of the Local
Government Act 1972;

(v) the powers in section 1 of the Local Authorities
(Goods and Services) Act 1970 and section 25 of the
Local Government (Wales) Act 1994 to provide
services;

(vi) all other powers them so enabling;
a protocol agreed by the Councils for the release of

public statements and press releases relating to the
Swansea Bay City Region

Page 23



“Programme
Board”

“Programme Board
Costs”

“Project Authority
Lead”

“Project Business
Case”

“Project
Conditions”

“Regional Office”
“Regional Office

Costs”

“Regional Office
Costs Budget”

“Regional Project”

“Regional Project
Delivery Lead”

“Resolution”

“Shadow Board”

“Swansea Bay City
Deal”

C:5159682v19

the board established in accordance with clause 16
and Schedule 2 for the purpose of implementing the
Swansea Bay City Deal and the Councils’ obligations
in relation to the Swansea Bay City Deal;

the operational costs of the
Programme Board;

and management

the Council responsible for the Government Funding
element of funding for each project as set out in clause
12 and the Implementation Plan

a document setting out details of a project proposed for
inclusion in the Swansea Bay City Deal and explaining
why it should be included in the Swansea Bay City
Deal;

any project funding conditions proposed by the Welsh
Government or the UK Government for each project as
referred to in clause 12;

the office established by the Councils to manage the
Swansea Bay City Deal;

the operational and management costs of the Regional
Office;

the budget for the Regional Office Costs;

a project located in the area of more than one of the
Councils;

the organisation responsible for preparation and
submission of the Project Business Case for and
delivery of a Regional Project;

a decision taken by or on behalf of one of the Councils
in compliance with that Council’s constitution and
scheme of delegation;

a board of representatives of the Councils who took
provisional decisions on matters relevant to the
Swansea Bay City Deal before the establishment of
the Joint Committee;

a programme supported by the UK Government and
the Welsh Government and administered through the
joint committee established in accordance with clause
4 of this Agreement to provide the Swansea Bay City
Region and its partners with new ways of working and
resources to unlock significant economic growth
across the Swansea Bay City Region and with an
opportunity to continue tackling the area’s barriers to
economic growth through developing higher value
sectors and higher value employment opportunities to
match, increas'?ﬂ the number of businesses within

Page



these sectors to widen the economic base, and
improving the region’s GVA level against the UK
average;

“Swansea Bay City the administrative area covered by Carmarthenshire
Region” County Council, Neath Port Talbot County Borough

Council, Pembrokeshire County Council and City and
County of Swansea Council for Local Authority

services;
“Withdrawing a Council that has given notice of its intention to
Council” withdraw from the Swansea Bay City Deal and this

1.2

1.3

14

15

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

agreement in accordance with clause 22

The headings are inserted for convenience only and shall not affect the
construction of this Agreement.

Words importing one gender include all other genders and words
importing the singular include the plural and vice versa.

A reference in this Agreement to any clause, paragraph or schedule is,
except where it is expressly stated to the contrary, a reference to a clause
or paragraph of or schedule to this Agreement.

Any reference to this Agreement or to any other document unless
otherwise specified shall include any variation, amendment or
supplements to such document expressly permitted by this Agreement or
otherwise agreed in writing between the relevant parties.

Words preceding “include”, “includes”, “including” and “included” shall be
construed without limitation by the words which follow those words unless
inconsistent with the context, and the rule of interpretation known as

“eiusdem generis” shall not apply.

Any reference to the title of an officer of any of the Councils shall include
any person holding such office from time to time by the same or any title
substituted thereafter or such other officer of the relevant Council as that
Council may from time to time appoint to carry out the duties of the officer
referred to.

The Schedules form part of this Agreement and shall have the same force
and effect as if expressly set out in the body of this Agreement and
references to this Agreement includes the Schedules.

References to “the parties” shall be to the parties to this Agreement.

Commencement and Duration

2.1

(@)

This Agreement shall commence on the Commencement Date and shall
continue in force for fifteen years from the Commencement Date or until
the earlier of the following dates:

The condition subsequent set out in clause 2.2 (Condition Subsequent)
is not satisfied or otherwise waived in writing by the Councils prior to the
Conditions Longstop Date;

C:5159682v19 Page 25



(b)
(c)

2.2

All the Councils agree in writing to its termination; or

There is only one remaining Council which has not withdrawn from this
Agreement in accordance with clause 22 (Withdrawal from this
Agreement).

The Condition Subsequent is that the Councils shall have approved the
Funding Conditions before the Conditions Longstop Date.

The Councils’ Obligations

3.1

3.2

3.3

(@)

(b)

The Councils agree to work together to carry into effect the Swansea Bay
City Deal pursuant to and in accordance with this Agreement.

To that end the Councils shall develop, agree and promote the Swansea
Bay City Deal and (without prejudice to the generality of that obligation)
shall comply with their duties as set out at clauses 7 (Duties of the
Accountable Body) and 8 (Duties of the other Councils). This is subject to
the fiduciary financial and legal duties of each Council.

Without prejudice to the specific terms of this Agreement, the Councils
further agree that they shall conduct their relationship:

In accordance with the strategic aims of the Swansea Bay City Deal as
follows:

0] The Internet of Economic Acceleration.

(ii) The Internet of Life Science & Well-Being.

(iii) The Internet of Energy.

(iv) Smart Manufacturing.

and

In accordance with the following principles:

0] Openness and trust: The Councils shall be open and trusting in
their dealings with each other, make information and analysis
available to each other, discuss and develop ideas openly and
contribute fully to all aspects of making the joint working
successful. The Councils shall embrace a commitment to
transparency in their dealings and shall recognise the need to

comply with statutory access to information requirements
including FOI Legislation and supporting codes of practice.

(i) Commitment and drive: The Councils shall be fully committed to
working jointly, shall seek to fully motivate employees and shall
address the challenges of delivering the Swansea Bay City Deal
with enthusiasm and a determination to succeed.

(iii) Skills and creativity: The Councils recognise that each brings
complementary skills and knowledge which they shall apply
creatively to achieving the Councils' objectives, continuity,
resolution of difficulties and the development of the joint working
relationship and the personnel working within it. It is recognised

C:5159682v19 Page 26



4.

that this shall involve the appreciation and adoption of common
values.

(iv) Effective relationships: The roles and responsibilities of each
Council shall be clear with relationships developed at the
appropriate levels within each organisation with direct and easy
access to each other's representatives.

(v) Developing and adaptive: The Councils recognise that they are
engaged in a potentially long term business relationship which
needs to develop and adapt and shall use reasonable
endeavours to develop and maintain an effective joint process to
ensure that the relationship develops appropriately and in line
with these principles and objectives.

(vi) Reputation _and Standing: The Councils shall pay the utmost
regard to the standing and reputation of one another, and act with
regard to each Council's own employer and member codes of
conduct and shall not do or fail to do anything which may bring
the standing or reputation of any other Council into disrepute or
attract adverse publicity to any other Council.

(vi)  Reasonableness of decision making: The Councils agree that all
decisions made in relation to this Agreement and the Swansea
Bay City Deal shall be made by them acting reasonably and in
good faith.

(vii)  Members and Officers’ Commitments: Each Council shall use its
reasonable endeavours to procure that their respective members
and officers who are involved in the Swansea Bay City Deal shall
at all times act in the best interests of the Swansea Bay City
Deal, and act compatibly with regard to each Council's own
employer and member codes of conduct, devote sufficient
resources to deliver the Swansea Bay City Deal and respond in a
timely manner to all relevant requests from the other Councils.

Establishment of a Joint Committee

4.1

4.2

4.3

In exercise of their Powers under sections 101(5) and 102 of the Local
Government Act 1972, sections 19 and 20 of the Local Government Act
2000 and all other enabling powers the Councils hereby create a joint
committee to be known as the Swansea Bay City Region Joint Committee
with effect from the Commencement Date.

The Councils shall use their Powers in sections 101, 102, 111, 112 and
113 of the Local Government Act 1972, sections 2, 19 and 20 of the Local
Government Act 2000, section 1 of the Local Authorities (Goods and
Services) Act 1970, section 25 of the Local Government (Wales) Act 1994,
section 9 of the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009 and all other
enabling powers available from time to time to facilitate their effective
participation in the Joint Committee and the effective delivery of the
Swansea Bay City Deal.

The terms of reference of the Joint Committee as at the date of signature
of this Agreement are set out at Schedule 1 to this Agreement.

C:5159682v19 Page 27



4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

The Councils may from time to time vary the terms of reference of the
Joint Committee and this shall be a matter reserved to the Councils. In
the event that the Councils agree to vary the terms of reference of the
Joint Committee they shall notify the Regional Office and the Regional
Office shall arrange for Schedule 1 to this Agreement to be amended. The
reservation to the Councils does not preclude the Joint Committee from
making recommendations to vary the terms of the reference where it
considers they shall promote the Council’s Obligations.

The Joint Committee shall operate and conduct its business in accordance
with the terms of this Agreement including the Terms of Reference of the
Joint Committee as set out at Schedule 1 to this Agreement.

The Joint Committee shall not have power to approve any matter which
has been reserved to the Councils as set out in 0 to this Agreement.

The Joint Committee may delegate functions to sub-committees and
officers.

This Agreement is without prejudice to each Council’s other powers and
responsibilities for its area.

Arrangements for the discharge of functions

5.1

52

5.3

The Councils agree to use their powers under section 101(1) of the Local
Government Act 1972, sections 19 and 20 of the Local Government Act
2000 and all other enabling powers to enter into arrangements under
which the Joint Committee shall discharge on their behalf the functions set
out in the terms of reference of the Joint Committee in Schedule 1 to this
Agreement.

Each Council hereby represents and confirms to the other Councils that it
has obtained all necessary consents sufficient to ensure the delegation of
functions and responsibilities provided for by this Agreement.

Each Council warrants that entering into this Agreement and its
participation in the Joint Committee is consistent with its own constitution.

Appointment of the Accountable Body

6.1

6.2

6.3

The Councils have agreed that with effect from the Commencement Date
Carmarthenshire County Council shall act as the Accountable Body
responsible for discharging the Councils’ Obligations in relation to the
Swansea Bay City Deal pursuant to and in accordance with this
Agreement.

If the Accountable Body defaults on any of the provisions of this
Agreement and the Joint Committee decides that a replacement
Accountable Body should be appointed or the Accountable Body
withdraws pursuant to clause 22, then the Joint Committee shall appoint
another Council as the Accountable Body with the consent of that Council
such appointment to take effect when the withdrawal or termination takes
effect or as soon as possible after that occurs.

If a replacement Accountable Body is appointed pursuant to clause 6.2
any reference to Carmarthenshire County Council in its capacity as the

C:5159682v19 Page 28



6.4

6.5

initial Accountable Body shall be read with reference to the replacement
Accountable Body.

The Accountable Body shall act as the Accountable Body as set out in this
Agreement and shall receive the Government Funding for and on behalf of
the Councils and shall hold and manage such Government Funding in
accordance with the terms of this Agreement. The Accountable Body
shall receive the Councils’ Contributions and shall hold and manage the
Councils’ Contributions in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

If the Accountable Body is replaced as Accountable Body in accordance
with clause 6.2 the Accountable Body shall comply with its duties in clause
7.2.

7. Duties of the Accountable Body

7.1
(@)
(b)
(€)

(d)

(€)

(f)

9
(h)

7.2

(@)

(b)

The Accountable Body shall:
Act diligently and in good faith in all its dealings with the other Councils.
Act with reasonable skill and care and in accordance with best practice.

Act in accordance with the principles and strategic aims of this
Agreement and any applicable policies agreed by the Joint Committee.

Comply with any investigation by any statutory ombudsman or tribunal
relating to the Swansea Bay City Deal.

Act as the primary interface with Welsh Government, UK Government
and any other funding bodies necessary to discharge the Councils'
Obligations.

Hold and release any Government Funding in relation to the Swansea
Bay City Deal and only to use and release such funds as agreed in
accordance with the terms of such funding and this Agreement.

Comply with the Funding Conditions.

Undertake the accounting and auditing responsibilities set out in this
Agreement.

Employ the Regional Office staff

If the Accountable Body is replaced as Accountable Body in accordance
with clause 6.2 the Accountable Body shall take any action required by
any or all of the other Councils to allow another of the Councils to take on
the role of Accountable Body and to allow the other Councils to continue
with this Agreement and the Swansea Bay City Deal. Without prejudice to
the generality of the foregoing the Accountable Body shall promptly:

Transfer any information which it holds in its role as Accountable Body to
any person or body to whom the Chair of the Joint Committee instructs it
to transfer;

Co-operate with the other Councils to identify whether the Regional
Office staff shall transfer to the replacement Accountable Body and shall

C:5159682v19 Page 29



8.

9.

10.

(€)

promptly facilitate any such transfer unless otherwise agreed by the
Councils;

Transfer any other assets which it holds in its role as Accountable Body
to any person or body to whom the Chair of the Joint Committee
instructs it to transfer;

Duties of the Other Councils

8.1

8.2

The Councils other than the Accountable Body shall act diligently and in
good faith in all their dealings with the Accountable Body and shall assist
the Accountable Body to discharge the Councils’ obligations in relation to
the Swansea Bay City Deal pursuant to and in accordance with this
Agreement and all applicable legislation

It is acknowledged and agreed that the obligations and liabilities of each
Council shall bind any successor authority in the event of any local
government reorganisation.

Regional Office

9.1

9.2

9.3

The Accountable Body shall establish a Regional Office to be responsible
for the day to day management of matters relating to the Joint Committee
and the Swansea Bay City Deal. The Regional Office shall have day to
day responsibility for managing the identification assessment approval
monitoring and evaluation processes for interventions and projects. The
Regional Office shall deliver all administrative functions necessary to the
implementation of the Swansea Bay City Deal. The Regional Office shall
maintain a register of interests of co-opted members of the Joint
Committee and the Economic Strategy Board. The Regional Office shall
provide monitoring reports to the Joint Committee and to the Economic
Strategy Board. Persons employed to work in the Regional Office shall be
employed by the Accountable Body.

The Joint Committee shall designate the Head of Paid Service of the
Accountable Body as Lead Chief Executive to act as its principal adviser
and as Accountable Officer to manage and oversee the work of the
Regional Office staff.

The Accountable Body shall be responsible for accommodating the
Regional Office in accordance with arrangements approved by the Joint
Committee.

Implementation Plan

10.1

10.2

The Joint Committee shall approve the Implementation Plan at its first
meeting which complies with the provisions of clause 10.2 below. The
Implementation Plan in order to be adopted must also be approved by the
Welsh Government and the UK Government which may be given either
before or after it is considered for adoption by the Joint Committee.

The Implementation Plan shall set out the high level activities that shall
support the delivery of the Swansea Bay City Deal and shall include
details of the nature of each of the projects, their outcomes and benefits,
key tasks and the indicative timeline and interdependencies between the
projects.

C:5159682v19 Page 30



11.

12.

10.3

The Joint Committee shall review the Implementation Plan annually. The
first review shall take place no later than one year after the approval of the
Implementation Plan. Reviews in later years shall take place no later than
one year after the previous review.

Projects Funded by The Swansea Bay City Deal

111

(@)
(b)
(€)
(d)
11.2

11.3

The Swansea Bay City Deal shall fund local and regional projects in the
following themes:

Internet of Economic Acceleration.

Internet of Life Science and Wellbeing.

Internet of Energy.

Smart Manufacturing.
Details of the allocation of Government Funding, private and public
funding and local government contributions for each project are set out at

0.

The proportion of the Government Funding shall be in accordance with the
details set out at O unless the Councils agree to vary this.

Processes for Funding Projects

12.1

12.2

12.3

(@)

(b)

The Delivery Lead for projects in the Swansea Bay City Deal shall be as
set out in the Implementation Plan.

The Project Authority Lead for projects in the Swansea Bay City Deal shall
be as set out in the Implementation Plan.

In order to receive funding from the Swansea Bay City Deal every project
must observe the following procedure:

The Delivery Lead must submit a Project Business case to the Regional
Office in accordance with the Implementation Plan. The Project
Business case shall include a Resolution of the Project Authority Lead
and all Councils in whose area the project shall take place that they
approve the submission of the Project Business case.

If one or more of the Councils does not approve the Project Business
Case for a Regional Project for submission to the UK Government and
the Welsh Government the Regional Project shall be referred directly to
the Joint Committee for the Joint Committee to decide whether:

(1) Additional time is to be allowed to address concerns of the
particular Council; or

(i) A revised Project Business Case is to be prepared omitting the
Council which does not approve in which case a revised Project
Business Case shall be resubmitted and approved in accordance
with this clause 12; or

(iii) Whether a project is no longer viable and should no longer be
progressed in which case clause 12.6 shall be followed.

C:5159682v19 Page 31



(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)

All Project Business Cases for projects to be considered for funding from
the Swansea Bay City Deal must meet the requirements of extant
guidance from the UK and Welsh Governments which at the
Commencement Date of this Agreement is guidance on the preparation
of “five case business models” and accordingly every Project Business
Case must include full details of:

0] The strategic case (strategic fit and clear investment objectives)
(i) The economic case (optimising value for money)

(iii) The commercial case (attractiveness to the market and
procurement arrangements)

(iv) The financial case (affordability — including the contributions to be
made by other public and private sector partners and the basis
for them); and

(v) The management case (deliverability — including confirmation of
decisions made and required by the governance arrangements of
third party funders of a project - and plans for delivery)

Upon receipt of a Project Business case the Regional Office shall assess
the quality and financial profile of the Project Business Case and shall
pass a copy of the Project Business Case to the UK Government and the
Welsh Government to carry out their own assessments of the Project
Business Case.

If the Regional Office is not satisfied with the quality of the Project
Business Case it shall return the Project Business Case to the Delivery
Lead and notify the Project Authority Lead. The Project Authority Lead
shall request all Councils involved in the project to pass any resolutions
necessary to agree to amendments of the Project Business Case. The
Project Business Case shall be amended as necessary and resubmitted.

When the Regional Office is satisfied with the Project Business Case it
shall send the Project Business Case to: the Programme Board with a
request for the Programme Board to analyse the financial viability,
deliverability and risk of the proposal and make a recommendation on
whether or not the business case should proceed.

When the Regional Office has received a recommendation from the
Programme Board it shall send the Project Business Case to the
Economic Strategy Board with a request for the Economic Strategy
Board to assess the Project Business Case against the strategic aims
and objectives of the Swansea Bay City Deal and make a
recommendation on whether or not the Project Business Case should
proceed. The Economic Strategy Board shall make its recommendation
to the Regional Office within one month of receiving the Project Business
case. In the absence of any recommendation within such timescale the
Regional Office shall be permitted to submit the recommendation for the
Programme Board to the Joint Committee for consideration.

The Regional Office shall submit the recommendations from the
Programme Board and the Economic Strategy Board to the Joint
Committee.

C:5159682v19 Page 32



(i)

()

(k)

12.4

12.5

12.6

(@)

(b)

The Joint Committee shall consider the Project Business Case and the
recommendations of the Programme Board and the Economic Strategy
Board and decide whether or not to approve the project for submission to
the UK Government and the Welsh Government for approval by the UK
Government and the Welsh Government for the release of Government
Funding for the project

If the Joint Committee approves a project for submission to the UK
Government and the Welsh Government it shall request the Project
Authority Lead and all Councils in whose areas the project shall take
place consider and approve-any Project Conditions proposed by the
Welsh and UK Governments for the project. Upon approval of the
Project Conditions the Joint Committee shall direct the Accountable
Body to release the Government Funding for that element of the project.

If the Joint Committee does not approve a project for submission to the
UK Government and the Welsh Government or the Council or Councils
in whose area the project shall take place does not approve the
submission the Joint Committee shall inform the Regional Office and the
Regional Office shall inform the Economic Strategy Board, the
Programme Board, the Delivery Lead and the Project Authority Lead.
The Joint Committee shall decide whether a revised Project Business
Case shall be prepared or whether the project should no longer be
progressed in which case the process in clause 12.6 shall be followed.

The Project Authority Lead shall be responsible for ensuring compliance
with any Project Conditions imposed by the Welsh and UK Governments.
Government Funding paid to any project must not exceed the amount
allocated to the project in accordance with the Implementation Plan or as
otherwise agreed by the Joint Committee.

If a Council wishes to withdraw from a project in the Swansea Bay City
Deal, it shall do so in accordance with any funding agreement into which it
has entered for the project and shall notify the Regional Office.

The Councils may agree to withdraw a project identfied in the
Implementation Plan and to replace it with another project or to change
the Project Authority Lead for a project in the Implementation Plan in
accordance with the following process as set out in Schedule 10 to this
Agreement:

The Project Authority Lead responsible for the project which is to be
withdrawn or given a change of Project Authority Lead must inform the
Regional Office of the need for the project to be withdrawn or given a
change of Project Authority Lead. If the Project Authority Lead informs
the Regional Office of the need for a project to be withdrawn the Project
Authority Lead may propose a new project to take the place of the
project to be withdrawn.

The Regional Office shall inform the Programme Board of the need for
the project to be withdrawn or given a change of Project Authority Lead.
The Regional Office shall also provide the Programme Board with details
of any proposal for a new project from the Project Authority Lead which
has informed the Regional Office of the need to withdraw a project in
accordance with clause 12.6(a).

C:5159682v19 Page 33



(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(¢)]

(h)

(i)

()

(k)

The Programme Board shall review the financial implications of the
proposed withdrawal of a project or change of Project Authority Lead
including consideration of abortive costs and any proposal for a new
project in accordance with clause 12.6(a) and submit a report to the
Economic Strategy Board.

The Economic Strategy Board shall consider the implications of the
proposed withdrawal of a project or change of Project Authority Lead and
any proposal for a new project in accordance with clause 12.6(a). The
Economic Strategy Board shall provide recommendations to the Joint
Committee on whether the new project proposed in accordance with
clause 12.6(a) should replace the project to be withdrawn and if not the
process for selecting new projects or reallocation of funding.

The Joint Committee shall consider the recommendations of the
Economic Strategy Board and decide whether the new project proposed
in accordance with clause 12.6(a) should replace the project to be
withdrawn or whether there should be a bidding process for a new
project for the Swansea Bay City Deal or reallocation of funding to
another project in the Swansea Bay City Deal.

The Regional Office shall notify the Welsh Government and the UK
Government of the decision of the Joint Committee and seek their
approval for the release of Government Funding for the new project.

On receipt of the Welsh Government and UK Government approval the
Regional Office shall, depending on the decision of the Joint Committee:

(@ Direct the Accountable Body to reallocate any funds in
accordance with the Joint Committee decision to replace the
project or reallocate and notify the relevant Project Authority
Lead(s) and Delivery Lead(s); and/or

(ii) Commence a bidding process by inviting the Councils to submit
strategic outline cases for Government Funding for replacement
projects.

The Programme Board and the Economic Strategy Board shall assess
the strategic outline cases and make recommendations to the Joint
Committee as to which Councils should be invited to submit outline
business cases in respect of which projects.

The Joint Committee shall consider the recommendations of the
Programme Board and the Economic Strategy Board and may invite one
or more of the Councils to submit outline business cases for replacement
projects in the Swansea Bay City Deal.

The Joint Committee shall consider the outline business cases and may
invite one or more of the Councils to submit full business cases for
replacement projects in the Swansea Bay City Deal.

If a Council submits a full business case for a replacement project in the
Swansea Bay City Deal this shall be considered for funding from the
Swansea Bay City Deal in accordance with the process set out in
clauses 12.3(a) to 12.3(k)12.3(k).

C:5159682v19 Page 34



13.

14.

15.

12.7

12.8

A diagram representing the process for approving business cases is set
out at O.

Diagrams representing the process for the flow of finances to local
projects and Regional Projects in the Swansea Bay City Deal are set out
at 0. Funding shall be released from the Accountable Body on a project
by project basis. Allocation shall be based on 1/15 of the Allocated Sum
per project. No funding shall be released from the Accountable Body until
the Project Business Case is approved. If project approval is delayed and
funding not released in 2018/19 the release in future years shall be
greater than the 1/15 allocated subject to the equivalent level of
expenditure being incurred until funding is back in line with the 1/15
allocation. This profile shall be agreed with the Accountable Body when
the Project Business Case is agreed with the Welsh and UK Governments

Borrowing

13.1

13.2

Each Council shall be responsible for borrowing to provide funding or
otherwise securing funding for projects located in its own area.

The Councils may agree that borrowing for a Regional Project should be
made by all the Councils equally or in proportions agreed by the Councils
or that borrowing should be carried out by one Council on behalf of the
other Councils if they so agree. The decisions as to whether borrowing for
any project shall be carried out by one Council on behalf of the other
Councils and the proportions shall be determined by the Councils as a
matter reserved to the Councils.

Funding from other bodies

14.1

14.2

14.3

If any body other than the Councils, the UK Government or the Welsh
Government provides funding for a project funded by the Swansea Bay
City Deal the Project Authority Lead may decide to enter into a funding
agreement with the body providing funding or with the Delivery Lead.

If a project is located in the areas of more than one Council that project
shall be regarded as a Regional Project. The Councils shall agree which
Council may enter into a funding agreement with the body providing
funding for a Regional Project or with the Regional Project Delivery Lead.
This decision shall be a matter reserved to the Councils.

The retention of 50% of the additional net yield of non-domestic rates from
projects in the Swansea Bay City Deal shall be applied across the
Swansea Bay City Region proportionate to the Swansea Bay City Deal
projects subject to the method of ascertaining the proportions to be
determined by the Joint Committee at the relevant time.

Sub-committees

15.1

The Joint Committee shall establish the membership and terms of
reference for any sub-committees or sub-groups which it establishes and
may dissolve such sub-committees or sub-groups. Sub-committees to
which the Joint Committee delegates functions are bound by the
provisions of this Agreement regulating the taking of decisions by the Joint
Committee. The Joint Committee may create additional sub-committees
from time to time as it sees fit.

C:5159682v19 Page 35



16.

17.

18.

19.

Programme Board

16.1 The Joint Committee shall establish a Programme Board (“PB”) which
shall report to the Joint Committee. The Programme Board shall have the
terms of reference set out at Schedule 2.

Economic Strategy Board

17.1 The Joint Committee shall facilitate the establishment of an Economic
Strategy Board (“ESB”). The Economic Strategy Board shall have the
terms of reference set out at 0. The process for recruitment of the
Economic Strategy Board’s membership shall be approved by the UK and
Welsh Governments.

Commitment of the Councils

18.1 Subiject to clause 22 the Councils agree and undertake to commit to the
Swansea Bay City Deal in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

Costs
19.1 Three Year and Annual Budget

(a) The Joint Committee shall agree a budget for the Accountable Body costs,
ESB costs, Joint Committee costs, Joint Scrutiny Committee costs, Programme
Board costs and Regional Office costs on a rolling 3 year basis. The Joint
Committee shall review this budget annually and shall agree the Annual Costs
Budget each year with the year 1 being confirmed and years 2 and 3 being
indicative.

19.2 Internal Costs

(a) The Internal Costs incurred by each Council for a project in its own area
shall be borne in the first instance by the Council providing that internal
resource but may subsequently be included as costs within a Project
Business Case.

(b) If the Regional Office undertakes work to assist the development of an
individual project the costs incurred may be included in the Project
Business Case.

(© All Internal Costs for a Regional Project shall be agreed by the Regional
Lead Body.

The Internal Costs incurred for a Regional Project shall be paid by the Project
Authority Lead for the project. The Project Authority Lead for each project shall
make provision for reimbursement of its Internal Costs in the business case it
submits to the Regional Office for the project

C:5159682v19 Page 36



19.3 Accounts

(a) The Accountable Body shall prepare accounts for any Accountable Body,
Joint Committee, Economic Strategy Board, Programme Board, Joint Scrutiny
Committee and Regional Office costs incurred for the relevant accounting
periods.

19.4 Annual Costs Budget

(@) The Annual Costs Budget for Years 1-5 shall be funded from the £50,000
paid by each Council each year. The funding of the Annual Costs Budget for
future years shall be a matter for the Constituent Authorities to agree.

(b) Costs in the Annual Costs Budget not funded from Council Contributions
shall be recovered as project costs.

(c ) The Joint Committee shall if necessary consider and recommend to the
Councils alternative funding options for the Annual Costs Budget. The Councils
shall decide whether or not to agree to alternative funding options proposed by
the Joint Committee.

Audit and Scrutiny

20.1 In exercise of their powers under sections 101 and 102 of the Local
Government Act 1972, sections 19 and 20 of the Local Government Act
2000 and all other enabling powers the Councils hereby create a Joint
Scrutiny Committee with effect from the Commencement Date. The Joint
Scrutiny Committee shall provide a scrutiny function to ensure greater
public accountability over decisions made by the Joint Committee and any
of its sub-committees and related entities.

20.2 The terms of reference of the Joint Scrutiny Committee are set out at
Schedule 12 to this Agreement.

20.3 The membership of the Joint Scrutiny Committee shall consist of 12
members. Each of the Councils shall nominate three members for
appointment to the Joint Scrutiny Committee. The member nominated by
each Council shall be an elected member of that Council but shall not be a
member of that Council’'s executive and shall not be a member of the Joint
Committee.

20.4 The Chair of the Joint Scrutiny Committee shall not be a member of the
Council which is providing the Chair of the Joint Committee.

20.5 The role of the Joint Scrutiny Committee is to provide advice, challenge
and support to the Joint Committee. The Joint Scrutiny Committee shall
be required to:

(@) Review and scrutinise the Joint Committee’s financial affairs.

(b) Review and assess the Joint Committee’s risk management, internal
control and corporate governance arrangements.

(© Review and assess the economy, efficiency and effectiveness with which
resources have been used.
C:5159682v19 Page 37



(d)

20.6

20.7

20.8

20.9

20.10

20.11

Make reports and recommendations to the Joint Committee in relation to
the points in (a) to (c).

The Accountable Body shall audit the finances and the discharge of
functions relating to the Swansea Bay City Deal.

If any Council is provided with funding from the Government Funding to
implement a project in the Swansea Bay City Deal it shall audit the
finances and the discharge of functions relating to that project.

Any Council which is provided with funding from the Government Funding
to implement a project in the Swansea Bay City Deal shall keep records of
time worked by any person working on the project and any other cost
relating to the project. Any Council which holds such records shall permit
the Accountable Body, the Joint Committee and the other Councils and
any of their representatives to examine and copy those records in order to
undertake any audit pursuant to this Agreement.

The Accountable Body shall keep records of time worked by any person
working for the Accountable Body on any matter relating to the Joint
Committee or the Swansea Bay City Deal.

Each Council shall permit all records referred to in this Agreement to be
examined and copied from time to time by the Accountable Body or any
representatives of the Accountable Body or any other representatives who
reasonably require access to the same in order to undertake any audit of
the funds received and spent pursuant to this Agreement. The
Accountable Body shall permit all records held by it which are referred to
in this Agreement or relate to this Agreement to be examined and copied
from time to time by any representatives of any of the Councils. If a
representative of any of the Councils requests from the Accountable Body
a copy in electronic form of any record held by the Accountable Body
which is referred to in this Agreement or relates to this Agreement the
Accountable Body shall provide a copy of the requested record in
electronic form if the record exists in electronic form when the Accountable
Body receives the request.

The Auditor General for Wales shall have access to any document relating
to the Joint Committee for the purpose of the Auditor General’s
examination of any auditable accounts, for the purpose of undertaking
studies under section 145A of the Government of Wales Act 1998 or for
the purpose of carrying out in accordance with any enactment other
examinations or studies into the economy, efficiency and effectiveness
with which a person has used resources in discharging the person’s
functions and any officer of the Wales Audit Office, the Welsh Government
and the European Commission shall have access to any document
relating to the Joint Committee and shall be permitted at reasonable notice
to visit the premises of the Accountable Body and the other Councils and
to inspect activities funded by the Government Funding and to examine
and take copies of books of account and other documents and records
relating to activities funded by the Government Funding.

21. Mitigation

21.1

Each Council shall at all times take all reasonable steps to minimise and
mitigate any loss for which the relevant Council is entitled to bring a claim
against any other Counci] pursuato this Agreement.

: Y PRYR'%S 9

C:5159682v19



22.

23.

24,

Withdrawal from this Agreement

22.1

22.2

If a Council wishes to withdraw from the Swansea Bay City Deal and this
Agreement, it shall provide not less than twelve months’ written notice
terminating at the end of a financial year of its intention to withdraw to the
Regional Office (“Joint Committee Withdrawal Notice”). The Councils may
require any Council which seeks to withdraw from the Swansea Bay City
Deal and this Agreement to meet specified conditions before the Councils
agree to accept the Joint Committee Withdrawal Notice. The specified
conditions may include but shall not be limited to payment of any amounts
due to be paid in accordance with this Agreement by the Council which
seeks to withdraw and payment by that Council of any costs which the
other Councils identify that they shall incur as a result of the withdrawal of
that Council. The Regional Office shall notify the Accountable Body no
later than ten Business Days after it receives a Joint Committee
Withdrawal Notice and the Accountable Body shall notify the Welsh
Government and the UK Government no later than 10 Business Days after
it receives notification from the Regional Office.

In the event that a Joint Committee Withdrawal Notice is issued by the
Accountable Body the Accountable Body shall during the period of notice
comply with its obligations under clause 7.2.

Termination of This Agreement

23.1

The Councils agree that this Agreement may be determined upon terms
agreed by all the Councils.

Liabilities of the Councils

241

24.2

24.3

The Accountable Body shall indemnify and keep indemnified each of the
other Councils against any losses, claims, expenses, actions, demands,
costs and liability suffered by that Council to the extent arising from any
wilful default or breach by the Accountable Body of its obligations under
this Agreement or negligent act or omission in relation to such obligations
(and “wilful” in this context shall, for the avoidance of doubt, not include
matters which are outside the reasonable control of the Accountable
Body).

No claim shall be made against the Accountable Body to recover any loss
or damage which may be incurred by reason of or arising out of the
carrying out by the Accountable Body of its obligations under this
Agreement unless and to the extent such loss or damage arises from a
wilful default or breach or negligent act or omission by the Accountable
Body under clause 24.1.

Each of the other Councils (acting severally) shall indemnify and keep
indemnified the Accountable Body and the other Councils against all
losses, claims, expenses, actions, demands, costs and liabilities which the
Accountable Body or the other Councils may incur by reason of or arising
out of any wilful default or breach by a Council of its obligations under this
Agreement (and “wilful” in this context shall, for the avoidance of doubt,
not include matters which are outside the reasonable control of that
Council or matters arising from any negligent act or omission in relation to
such obligations) unless and to the extent that the same result from any
breach by the Accountable Body of any such obligations.

C:5159682v19 Page 39



25.

24.4

24.5

24.6

24.7

The amount to be paid to the Accountable Body by any of the other
Councils under Clause 24.3 shall be borne by each of the Councils to the
extent of its responsibility, however in the event that the responsibility is a
shared one between the Councils (so that it is not reasonably practicable
to ascertain the exact responsibility between the Councils) then the
amount to be paid shall be divided between the Councils equally unless
the Councils agree otherwise.

A Council which receives a claim for losses, expenses, actions, demands,
costs and liabilities which relates to this Agreement shall notify and
provide details of such claim as soon as is reasonably practicable to the
other Councils.

No Council shall be indemnified in accordance with this clause 24 unless it
has given notice in accordance with clause 24.5 to the other Council
against whom it shall be enforcing its right to an indemnity under this
Agreement.

Each Council shall not be obliged to indemnify the other Councils to the
extent that the insurances maintained by the other Councils at the relevant
time provide an indemnity against the loss giving rise to a claim and to the
extent that another Council recovers under a policy of insurance save that
the Council responsible for liabilities suffered by another Council shall be
responsible for the deductible under any such policy of insurance and any
amount over the maximum amount insured under such policy of
insurance.

Dispute Resolution

251

25.2

25.3

254

The Councils undertake and agree to pursue a positive approach towards
dispute resolution which seeks in the context of this joint working
arrangement to identify a solution at the lowest operational level that is
appropriate to the subject of the dispute and which avoids legal
proceedings and maintains a strong working relationship between the
parties.

Any dispute arising in relation to any aspect of this Agreement shall be
resolved in accordance with this clause 25. This is without prejudice to
the right of any Council under section 103 of the Local Government Act
1972 to refer a dispute about the expenses of a joint committee to be
determined by a single arbitrator agreed by the appointing authorities or,
in the absence of agreement to be determined by the Welsh Ministers.

All disputes, claims or differences between the Councils arising out of or in
connection with this Agreement or its subject matter or formation,
including any question regarding its existence, validity or termination, (a
“Dispute”) shall, at the written request of any Council, be referred by each
Council to its head of paid service.

If the Councils’ heads of paid service do not agree a resolution of the
Dispute within twenty Business Days of the date of service of any such
request, either party may require the other party by notice in writing to
attempt to settle the Dispute by mediation in accordance with the Centre
for Dispute Resolution (CEDR) Model Mediation Procedure. Within five
Business Days of the date of service of such notice the parties shall each
propose a mediator and shall seek to agree as to the selection of a
mediator.

C:5159682v19 Page 40



25.5

25.6

25.7

25.8

259

25.10

25.11

(@)

(b)
(€)

25.12

If the Councils are unable to agree on a mediator within ten Business
Days of date of service of the notice referred to in clause 25.4 or the
mediator agreed upon is unable or unwilling to act and the Councils
cannot agree upon a substitute, any of the Councils may apply to CEDR to
appoint a mediator as soon as practicable.

The Councils shall within five Business Days of the appointment of the
mediator (the “Mediator”) meet with him in order to agree a programme for
the exchange of any relevant information and the structure to be adopted
for the negotiations. If considered appropriate, the Councils may at any
stage seek assistance from CEDR to provide guidance on a suitable
procedure.

All negotiations connected with the Dispute shall be conducted in strict
confidence and without prejudice to the rights of the Councils in any future
proceedings.

If the Councils reach agreement on the resolution of the Dispute, such
agreement shall be reduced to writing and, once it is signed by the
Councils or their duly authorised representatives, shall be and remain
binding upon the parties.

The costs and expenses of the mediation shall be borne equally by the
Councils. Each Council shall bear its own costs and expenses of its
participation in the mediation.

If mediation fails to secure a resolution within ten Business Days of the
Mediator being appointed, the Councils shall attempt to settle the Dispute
by arbitration under the Rules of the London Court of International
Arbitration (which Rules are deemed to be incorporated by reference into
this clause) and otherwise in accordance with clause 25.11.

In the event that an arbitration is commenced pursuant to clause 25.10,
the parties agree that:

the tribunal shall consist of one arbitrator who is to be a chartered
accountant who is a full member of one of the CCAB bodies if the
dispute relates to a financial matter or a solicitor of at least ten years
standing as a qualified solicitor if the dispute relates to any other matter;

the place of the arbitration shall be Swansea;

the decision of the arbitrator shall be final and binding on the parties
(save in the case of manifest error).

In the event that an arbitration is commenced pursuant to clause 25.10 the
Regional Office shall notify the Welsh Government and the UK
Government.

OR (reference of dispute to independent expert)

25.13

All disputes, claims or differences between the Councils arising out of or in
connection with this Agreement or its subject matter or formation,
including any question regarding its existence, validity or termination shall,
at the written request of any Council be referred to:

C:5159682v19 Page 41



26.

(@)

(b)

such chartered accountant who is a full member of one of the CCAB
bodies if the dispute relates to a financial matter or a solicitor of at least
ten years standing as a qualified solicitor if the dispute relates to any
other matter as the Councils may agree in writing; or

failing agreement on the identity of the chartered accountant for a
dispute relating to a financial matter or the solicitor for a dispute relating
to any other matter within seven days of the date of service of the
request, such chartered accountant as may be appointed for this
purpose on the application of any Council by the President for the time
being of one of the CCAB bodies if the dispute relates to a financial
matter or such solicitor as may be appointed by the President for the
time being of the Law Society of England and Wales if the dispute
relates to any other matter.

25.14 The chartered accountant or solicitor appointed under clause 25 (the

“Expert”) shall act on the following basis:

@) he shall act as expert and not as arbitrator;

(b) his terms of reference shall be to determine the matter in dispute, as
notified to him in writing by either party within thirty days of his
appointment;

(© the Councils shall each provide the Expert with all information which he
reasonably requires and the Expert shall be entitled (to the extent he
considers it appropriate) to base his opinion on such information;

(d) the Expert’s determination shall (in the absence of manifest error) be
conclusive; and

(e) the Experts’ costs shall be borne in such proportions as the Expert may
direct or, failing any such direction, shall be borne equally between the
Councils unless agreed otherwise by the Councils.

Notices

26.1 Form of Notice

Any demand, notice or other communication given in connection with or required
by this Agreement shall be made in writing and shall be delivered to or sent by
pre-paid first class post or special delivery post to the recipient at the address
stated in O (or such other address as may be notified in writing from time to time
to all of the other Councils) or sent by facsimile to the number stated at O (or
such other number as may be notified in writing from time to time to all of the
other Councils).

26.2

Service

Any such demand, notice or communication shall be deemed to have been duly
served:

(@)
(b)

If delivered by hand, when left at the proper address for service;

If given or made by pre-paid first class or special delivery post two
Business Days after being posted; or

C:5159682v19 Page 42



(c)

If sent by facsimile at the time of transmission provided that a
confirmatory copy is on the same day that the facsimile is transmitted
sent by pre-paid first class post in the manner provided for in clause 26.1
(Form of Notice)

Provided in each case that if the time of such deemed service is either
after 4.00pm on a Business Day or on a day other than a Business Day
service shall be deemed to occur at 9.00am on the next following
Business Day.

27. Information and Confidentiality

27.1

27.2

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(€)

(f)

(9)

(h)

27.3

Each Council shall keep confidential the Confidential Information and
Intellectual Property Rights of any of the Councils and shall use all
reasonable endeavours to prevent their employees and agents from
making any disclosure to any person of the Confidential Information and
Intellectual Property Rights of the Councils other than as permitted under
the provisions of this Agreement. Each Council shall not use or disclose
other than as permitted under the provisions of this Agreement any
Confidential Information about the business of or belonging to any other
Council or third party which has come to its attention as a result of or in
connection with this Agreement.

The obligation in clause 27.1 shall not apply to:

Any disclosure of information that is reasonably required by persons
engaged in the performance of their obligations under this Agreement.

Any matter which a party can demonstrate is already generally available
and in the public domain otherwise than as a result of a breach of this
clause.

Any disclosure which is required by any law (including any order or a
court of competent jurisdiction) any statutory obligation or the rules of
any stock exchange or governmental or regulatory authority having the
force or law.

Any disclosure of information which is already lawfully in the possession
of the disclosing Council without restrictions as to its use prior to its
disclosure by the disclosing Council.

Any disclosure which is required or recommended by the rules of any
governmental or regulatory authority including any guidance from time to
time as to openness and disclosure of information by public bodies.

Any disclosure which is necessary to be disclosed to provide relevant
information to any insurance broker in connection with obtaining any
insurance required by this Agreement.

Any disclosure by a party to a department, office or agency of the
Government.

Any disclosure for the purpose of the examination and certification of a
party’s accounts.

Where disclosure is permitted under clauses 27.2(a), 27.2(f), 27.2(g) or
27.2(h) the recipient of the_ information shall be placed under the same

C:5159682v19 Page 43



28.

27.4

obligation of confidentiality as that contained in this Agreement by the
disclosing Council.

No Council shall make any public statement or issue any press release or
publish any other public document relating to, connected with or arising
out of this Agreement or any other agreement relating to the Swansea Bay
City Deal other than in accordance with any PR Protocol agreed by the
Councils.

Data Protection

28.1

28.2

28.3

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

The Councils shall comply with the provisions and obligations imposed on
them by the Data Protection Laws at all times when processing Personal
Data in connection with this Agreement, which processing shall be in
respect of the types of Personal Data, categories of Data Subjects, nature
and purposes, and duration, set out in a document to be agreed by the
Councils.

Each Council shall maintain records of all processing operations under its
responsibility that contain at least the minimum information required by the
Data Protection Laws, and shall make such information available to any
DP Regulator on request.

To the extent any Council processes any Personal Data on behalf of
another Council the processing Council shall:

Process such Personal Data only in accordance with the other Council’s
written instructions from time to time and only for the duration of this
Agreement.

Not process such Personal Data for any purpose other than those set
out in this Agreement or otherwise expressly authorised by the other
Council.

Take reasonable steps to ensure the reliability of all its personnel who
have access to such Personal Data, limit such access to its personnel
who require access, and remove, when no longer required, such access
to the Personal Data, and ensure that any such personnel are committed
to binding obligations of confidentiality when processing such Personal
Data.

Implement and maintain technical and organisational measures and
procedures to ensure an appropriate level of security for such Personal
Data, including protecting such Personal Data against the risks of
accidental, unlawful or unauthorised destruction, loss, alteration,
disclosure, dissemination or access.

Not transfer such Personal Data outside the European Economic Area
without the prior written consent of the other party.

Inform the other Council within twenty four (24) hours if any such
Personal Data is (while within the processing Council’'s possession or
control) subject to a personal data breach (as defined in Article 4 of
GDPR) or within such other time period as required under other Data
Protection Laws, or is lost or destroyed or becomes damaged, corrupted
or unusable.

C:5159682v19 Page 44



29.

(9)

(h)

(i)

()

(k)

()

(m)

(n)

28.4

28.5

28.6

Only appoint a third party to process such Personal Data with the prior
written consent of the other Council.

Not use or disclose any Personal Data to any Data Subject or to a third
party other than at the written request of the other Council or as
expressly provided for in this Agreement.

Return or irretrievably delete all Personal Data on termination or expiry
of this Agreement and not make any further use of such Personal Data.

Provide to the other Council and any DP Regulator all information and
assistance necessary or desirable to demonstrate or ensure compliance
with the obligations in this clause and the Data Protection Laws.

Permit the other Council or its representatives to access any relevant
premises, personnel or records of the processing Council on reasonable
notice to audit and otherwise verify compliance with this clause.

Take such steps as are reasonably required to assist the other Council in
ensuring compliance with its obligations under Articles 30 to 36
(inclusive) of GDPR and other applicable Data Protection Laws.

Notify the other Council within two (2) Business Days if it receives a
request from a Data Subject to exercise its rights under the Data
Protection Laws in relation to that person’s Personal Data; and

Provide the other Council with its full co-operation and assistance in
relation to any request made by a Data Subject to exercise its rights
under the Data Protection Laws in relation to that person’s Personal
Data.

If any Council receives any complaint, notice or communication which
relates directly or indirectly to the processing of Personal Data by another
Council or to another Council’'s compliance with the Data Protection Laws,
it shall as soon as reasonably practicable notify the other Council and it
shall provide the other Council with reasonable co-operation and
assistance in relation to any such complaint, notice or communication.

If a Council requires another Council to make any disclosures or provide
any information in respect of this Agreement in order to enable that party
to meet its obligations under the Data Protection Laws the other Council
shall do so.

The provisions of this clause shall apply during the continuance of this
Agreement and indefinitely after its expiry or termination.

Intellectual Property

20.1

29.2

Each Council shall retain all Intellectual Property in its Material.

Each Council shall grant all of the other Councils and any other person
specified by the Joint Committee a non-exclusive, perpetual, non-
transferable and royalty free licence to use, modify, amend and develop its
IP Material for the discharge of the Councils' obligations in relation to the
Swansea Bay City Deal and any other purpose resulting from the
Swansea Bay City Deal whether or not the Council party granting the
licence remains a party to this Agreement.

C:5159682v19 Page 45



30.

29.3

29.4

29.5

29.6

29.7

Any Intellectual Property in Material which is produced by the Joint
Committee or the Regional Office shall be held by the Accountable Body
on behalf of the Councils jointly.

Without prejudice to clause 29.1, if more than one Council owns or has a
legal or beneficial right or interest in any aspect of the IP Material for any
reason (including without limitation that no one Council can demonstrate
that it independently supplied or created the relevant IP Material without
the help of one or more of the other Councils), each of the Councils who
contributed to the relevant IP Material shall grant to all other Councils to
this Agreement a non-exclusive, perpetual, non-transferable and royalty
free licence to use and exploit such IP Material as if all the other Councils
were the sole owner under the Copyright Design and Patents Act 1988 or
any other relevant statute or rule of law.

Any entity or person who is at the date of this Agreement a party to this
Agreement and who has licensed any Intellectual Property under this
Agreement shall have a non-exclusive, perpetual right to continue to use
the licensed Intellectual Property.

Each Council warrants that it has or shall have the necessary rights to
grant the licences set out in clause 29.2 and 29.4 in respect of the IP
Material to be licensed.

Each Council agrees to execute such further documents and take such
actions or do such things as may be reasonably requested by any other
Councils (and at the expense of the Council or Councils making the
request) to give full effect to the terms of this Agreement.

Freedom of Information

30.1

30.2

30.3

(@)

Each Council acknowledges that it and the other Councils are subject to
the requirements of FOI Legislation and therefore recognise that
information relating to this Agreement may be the subject of an
Information Request. The Councils shall comply with the Accountable
Body’s policy on FOI Legislation in respect of information disclosure
obligations to the extent that they relate to the Swansea Bay City Deal.

Where a Council receives a request for information under either the FOI
Legislation in relation to information which it is holding on behalf of any of
the other Councils in relation to the Swansea Bay City Deal, it shall inform
the Accountable Body and the other Councils of the request and its
response.

The Accountable Body shall be required to assist any of the Councils in
responding to a request for information to the extent that it relates to the
Swansea Bay City Deal. This shall include co-ordinating the response
when requested to do so by any of the Councils. All costs incurred by the
Accountable Body in assisting a Council with a response to a request for
information relating to the Swansea Bay City Deal shall be accounted for
as Joint Committee Costs. Any Council which requests the Accountable
Body to assist with or co-ordinate a response to a request for information
relating to the Swansea Bay City Deal shall:

Provide the Accountable Body with a copy of the request for information
as soon as practicable after receipt and in any event within two Business

Days of receiving an Igtgra%ti%é%equest.

C:5159682v19



(b)

(c)

30.4

(@)
(b)
30.5

(@)

(b)

Provide the Accountable Body with a copy of all information in its
possession or power in the form the Accountable Body reasonably
requires within ten Business Days (or such longer period as the
Accountable Body may specify) of the Accountable Body requesting that
information.

Provide all necessary assistance as reasonably requested by the
Accountable Body to enable the Accountable Body to provide any
required assistance or co-ordination of a response to a request for
information within the time for compliance set out in FOI Legislation.

Any Council which receives a request for information under FOI
Legislation shall be responsible for determining in their absolute discretion
whether any information requested under FOI Legislation:

Is exempt from disclosure under FOI Legislation.

Is to be disclosed in response to an Information Request.

Each Council acknowledges that the Accountable Body and any of the
Councils may be obliged under FOI Legislation to disclose information:

Without consulting the other Councils where it has not been practicable
to achieve such consultation; or

Following consultation with the other Councils and having taken their
views into account.

31. Language

31.1

The Joint Committee and Joint Scrutiny Committee shall undertake their
functions in such a way as to comply with each of the Councils compliance
notices issued under the Welsh Language Standards (No 1) Regulations
2015.

32. Severability

32.1

(@)

(b)

If at any time any clause or part of a clause or schedule or appendix or
part of a schedule or appendix to this Agreement is found by any court,
tribunal or administrative body of competent jurisdiction to be wholly or
partly illegal, invalid or unenforceable in any respect:

That shall not affect or impair the legality, validity or enforceability of any
other provision of this Agreement.

The parties shall in good faith amend this Agreement to reflect as nearly
as possible the spirit and intention behind that illegal, invalid or
unenforceable provision to the extent that such spirit and intention is
consistent with the laws of that jurisdiction and so that the amended
Agreement complies with the laws of that jurisdiction.

33. Relationship of Councils

33.1

Each of the Councils is an independent Local Authority and nothing
contained in this Agreement shall be construed to imply that there is any
relationship between the parties of partnership or principal/agent or of
employer/employee. No party shall have any right or authority to act on

C:5159682v19 Page 47



34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

behalf of another party nor to bind another party by contract or otherwise
except to the extent expressly permitted by the terms of this Agreement.

Third Party Rights

34.1

The Councils as parties to this Agreement do not intend that any of its
terms shall be enforceable by virtue of the Contracts (Rights of Third
Parties) Act 1999 by any person not a party to it.

Entire Agreement

35.1

This Agreement and all documents referred to in this Agreement set forth
the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the subject
matter covered by them and supersede and replace all prior
communications, representations (other than fraudulent representations),
warranties, stipulations, undertakings and agreements whether oral or
written between the parties. Each party acknowledges that it does not
enter into this Agreement in reliance on any warranty, representation or
undertaking other than those contained in this Agreement and that its only
remedies are for breach of this Agreement, provided that this shall not
exclude any liability which either party would otherwise have to the other
in respect of any statements made fraudulently by or on behalf of it prior to
the date of this Agreement.

Law of Agreement or Jurisdiction

36.1

This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of England and Wales as
they apply in Wales and the parties submit to the exclusive jurisdiction of
the courts of England and Wales.

Assignment

37.1

The rights and obligations of the Councils under this Agreement shall not
be assigned, novated or otherwise transferred to any person other than to
any public body acquiring the whole of the Agreement and having the
legal capacity, power and authority to become a party to and to perform
the obligations of the relevant Council under this Agreement being:

(a) The Welsh Ministers,
(b) A devolved Welsh authority as defined in the Wales Act 2017.
(©) A Minister of the Crown pursuant to an Order under the Ministers of the
Crown Act 1975,
(d) A UK public body exercising functions in Wales or in England and Wales.
Waiver
38.1 No failure or delay by any Council to exercise any right, power or remedy
shall operate as a waiver of it nor shall any partial exercise preclude any
further exercise of the same or some other right, power or remedy unless
a waiver is given in writing by that Council.
38.2 Each Council shall pay its own costs incurred in connection with the

preparation, execution, completion and implementation of this Agreement.

C:5159682v19 Page 48



39.

40.

41.

Counterparts

39.1 This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts each of
which so executed shall be an original but together shall constitute one
and the same instrument.

Discretion of the Councils

40.1 The discretion of any Council shall not be fettered or otherwise affected by
the terms of this Agreement.

Withdrawal of the United Kingdom from the European Union

41.1 The parties shall keep this Agreement under review in the context of the
withdrawal of the United Kingdom from the European Union and any
changes in any law which applies to the parties.

41.2 Any adjustments which are required to this Agreement as a result of a
change in any law resulting from the withdrawal of the United Kingdom
from the European Union shall be referred to the Joint Committee to
implement under the Joint Committee’s terms of reference.

C:5159682v19 Page 49



THE COMMON SEAL OF
the Carmarthenshire County Council

was hereunto affixed in the presence of

THE COMMON SEAL OF
The Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council

was hereunto affixed in the presence of

THE COMMON SEAL OF
the Pembrokeshire County Council

was hereunto affixed in the presence of

THE COMMON SEAL OF
the Council of the City and County of Swansea

was hereunto affixed in the presence of

C:5159682v19 Page 50



11

2.1

2.2

Schedule 1 Terms of Reference of the Joint Committee

Governance

Leaders of the four local authorities

Purpose

The Joint Committee has ultimate responsibility and accountability for decisions
taken in relation to the Swansea Bay City Deal, in line with the visions and
interests of all participating parties and the Swansea Bay City Deal document
signed on 20 March 2017.

The Joint Committee’s functions shall include:

(@)

(b)

(€)
(d)
(e)

(f)

9

(h)

()
(k)

()

(m)

Identifying and implementing appropriate governance structures for the
implementation of any projects within the Swansea Bay City Deal
programme. This shall include the formation of bodies corporate and
any other structures which the Councils can lawfully establish or
participate in.

Agreeing and planning the overall strategy for and delivery of the
programme for the Swansea Bay City Deal.

Performance management of the Swansea Bay City Deal programme.
Strategic communications.

Monitoring of the impact of the Swansea Bay City Deal programme and
reporting on this to the Councils.

Authorising the Accountable Body to:

0] Commission external support and

(i) Oversee the delivery and management of project expenditure.
Progressing a regional approach for the Swansea Bay City Region for
the discharge of strategic functions. These functions may include land
use planning, transport planning and economic development.

Approval and adoption of the Implementation Plan.

Approval of any extension agreed by the Councils to the deadline for
approval of the Implementation Plan.

Agreeing the terms and conditions of Government Funding.

Overseeing the proportion of each Council’s responsibility for borrowing
to provide funding for regional projects.

Reviewing performance of the Chair of the Economic Strategy Board on
an annual basis.

Agreeing the Annual Costs Budget.

C:5159682v19 Page 51



3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

4.1

4.2

4.3

Membership

Each of the Councils shall appoint its leader or equivalent as its representative
as a member of the Joint Committee and all such members shall have full voting
rights.

Each Council may appoint a deputy for its member on the Joint Committee who
may attend meetings of the Joint Committee as a substitute for the Council’s
appointed member on the Joint Committee but such deputy shall only be entitled
to attend meetings of the Joint Committee in the absence of the Council’s
appointed member.

The Joint Committee shall be entitled to co-opt on terms acceptable to the Joint
Committee one representative of each of the following organisations to the Joint
Committee as non-voting members of the Joint Committee for a period of five
years from the Commencement Date.

(a) Swansea University.

(b) University of Wales Trinity St David.

(© Hywel Dda University Health Board.

(d) Abertawe Bro Morgannwg Health Board.

The Joint Committee may co-opt one representative of Milford Haven Port
Authority to the Joint Committee as a hon-voting member of the Joint Committee
for a period of five years from the Commencement Date.

The Joint Committee may appoint additional persons to the Joint Committee as
non-voting members of the Joint Committee for a period of five years from the
Commencement Date. The Joint Committee shall not co-opt an additional
person to the Joint Committee unless the Joint Committee has decided that the
person has expertise relevant to one or more themes in the Swansea Bay City
Deal.

The co-option of any person as a non-voting member shall be subject to that
person confirming in writing to the monitoring officer of the Accountable Body
that he or she agrees to comply with the Co-opted Member Protocol. No co-
option shall take effect until such confirmation has been given.

The head of paid service, monitoring officer and section 151 officer of each of
the Councils shall be entitled to attend meetings of the Joint Committee as an
adviser and shall not have a vote.

Chair

The Chair of the Joint Committee shall be an elected member representative of
a Council appointed to the Joint Committee.

The Chair of the Joint Committee shall be elected for a two year term in the first
instance, reviewed annually thereafter.

The three Leaders of the remaining local authorities shall be appointed as
Deputy Chairs.

C:5159682v19 Page 52



5.1

6.1

6.2

7.1

7.2

7.3

8.1

9.1

10

10.1

11

111

12

12.1

Voting

Each member of the Joint Committee shall have one vote. Decisions of the
Joint Committee shall be made by simple majority vote. In the event of an
equality of votes, the Chair of the Joint Committee shall have a casting vote.
Conflict of Interest

To allow the Joint Committee to undertake all its functions a clear distinction
shall be drawn between those involved in specific scheme development and
those preparing recommendations on those schemes. A robust system of
declaration of conflict of interest shall be put in place.

Occasions shall arise where conflicts of interest preclude specific named
members and/or local authorities from taking part in discussions which shall
form views and recommendations on specific matters. Members have an
obligation to declare any such interests which shall then be recorded.
Proceedings of Meetings

The rules of procedure in the constitution of the Accountable Body shall apply to
meetings of the Joint Committee.

The leaders of the Councils shall be subject to the codes of conduct of their
Councils.

Co-opted members of the Joint Committee who are not members of the
Councils shall be subject to the rules of conduct in Schedule 13 and shall sign
an undertaking in the form set out at Schedule 13 to confirm that they shall
abide by those rules of conduct.

Quorum

The quorum for a meeting of the Joint Committee shall be one representative
from each of the four Councils.

Frequency

The Joint Committee shall meet monthly initially until at such point it agrees
otherwise. Additional meetings may be called by the Chair on at least seven
clear days’ notice issued through the Regional Office.

Allowances

No allowances shall be paid.

Servicing

The Regional Office shall organise appropriate servicing for the meetings.

Sub groups

The Joint Committee by agreement can introduce sub-groups or Task & Finish
groups for any matters which they feel would be better dealt with in this way.

These sub-groups shall report to the Joint Committee with any
recommendations or draft papers or reports.

C:5159682v19 Page 53



13 Letters of Support

13.1 The Joint Committee may authorise the Chair of the Joint Committee to send
letters of support on behalf of the Councils to businesses for projects which the
Joint Committee decides are complementary to the Swansea Bay City Deal.
The Joint Committee shall not give such authorisation to the Chair of the Joint
Committee unless the Joint Committee is satisfied that the project for which a
letter of support will be provided meets criteria agreed by the Joint Committee.

14 Review

14.1 To be reviewed annually.

C:5159682v19 Page 54



11

2.1

3.1

4.1

51

52

Schedule 2 Programme Board

Governance

Officer Governance

Purpose

The Programme Board shall have four distinct roles:

@) Preparing recommendations on the Swansea Bay City Deal programme:

(1) Ensuring that all schemes are developed in accordance with the
agreed package.

(i) Overseeing production of business cases.

(iii) Preparing recommendations to the Joint Committee and
Economic Strategy Board on all schemes whilst ensuring that
due regard is given to all advisory/consultation bodies.

(b) Advising on the strategic direction of the Economic Strategy Board.

(© Overseeing performance and delivery of the delivery of projects in
accordance with diagram B in 0.

(d) Working on a regional basis to improve public services especially in the
areas of: economic development; transport, planning and strategic land
use; housing and regeneration.

Accountable to

Joint Committee

Reporting

All reports prepared by the Board pertaining to Swansea Bay City Deal and

regional or sub-regional matters, once approved by the Board, shall be

submitted as draft to the Joint Committee for approval via the Regional Office.

Membership

The Swansea Bay City Region Programme Board shall consist of the head of

paid service of each of the Councils or another officer nominated by the head of

paid service.

The Programme Board may co-opt additional representatives to the Board. Co-
opted members may include representatives of the following organisations:

(@) Swansea University.

(b) University of Wales Trinity St David.

C:5159682v19 Page 55



6.1

6.2

7.1

7.2

7.3

8.1

8.2

9.1

10

10.1

11

111

12

12.1

13

13.1

(© Hywel Dda University Health Board.

(d) Abertawe Bro Morgannwg Health Board.

Chair

The Chair shall be agreed by the Joint Committee.

The Chair shall be reviewed annually.

Voting/Agreement

The Programme Board shall not have any decision making Powers.
Agreement shall be reached by consensus.

Where alternative views and opinions are expressed these shall be recorded
and included in any reporting process.

Conflicts of Interest

To allow the Programme Board to undertake all its functions a clear distinction
shall be drawn between those involved in specific scheme development and
those preparing recommendations on those schemes to the Joint Committee. A
robust system of declaration of conflicts of interest shall be put in place.
Occasions shall arise where conflicts of interest preclude specific named officers
and/or local authorities from taking part in discussions which shall form views
and recommendations on specific matters. Members have an obligation to
declare any such interests which shall then be recorded.

Proceedings of meetings

The chair of the Board shall arrange for minutes of the proceedings of each
meeting to be taken, approved and recorded. This role shall be undertaken by
the Regional Office.

Quorum

For the Board to agree and submit recommendations, the Councils must be
represented up to a quorum equivalent to that of half of the representatives of
the Councils on the membership of the Programme Board and must include the
4 Chief Executives or their representatives .

Frequency

The Programme Board shall meet monthly before the Joint Committee meeting
and before all quarterly meetings of the Economic Strategy Board.

Allowances
No allowances shall be paid.
Servicing

The Regional Office shall organise appropriate servicing for the meetings.

C:5159682v19 Page 56



C:5159682v19 Page 57



Schedule 3 Notices

Chief Legal Officer
Carmarthenshire County Council
County Hall

Carmarthen

Carmarthenshire

SA31 1JP

Chief Legal Officer

Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council
Port Talbot Civic Centre

Port Talbot

SA13 1PJ

Chief Legal Officer
Pembrokeshire County Council
County Hall

Haverfordwest

Pembrokeshire

SA61 1TP

Chief Legal Officer

City and County of Swansea Council
Civic Centre

Oystermouth Road

Swansea

SA1 3SN

C:5159682v19 Page 58



Schedule 4 Accounting Periods

The initial Accounting Period shall be the date of this Agreement until 31 March and

thereafter shall be:

Start of Accounting Period

End of Accounting Period

1 April 30 June

1 July 30 September
1 October 31 December
1 January 31 arch

C:5159682v19

Page 59




10

11

12

Schedule 5 Matters Reserved to The Councils
Approving the Funding Conditions.

Making decisions on borrowing and on finding other sources of funding other
than Government Funding for projects. Each Council shall be responsible for
borrowing or providing other funding for projects located in its area. If a project
is located in the areas of more than one Council each of the Councils in whose
area the project is located may agree that borrowing or providing other funding
should be shared between all of the Councils in whose areas the project is
located equally or in proportions agreed by all of the Councils in whose areas
the project is located.

Deciding which Council should enter into a funding agreement for a project
located in the areas of more than one of the Councils.

Agreeing to replace a project identified in the Implementation Plan with a project
which has completed the process set out in clause 12.6.

Varying the terms of reference of the Joint Committee.
Deciding whether to accept a Joint Committee Withdrawal Notice from one of
the Councils and to allow a Council to withdraw from the Swansea Bay City Deal

and this Agreement.

Deciding on conditions to impose on a Council which issues a Joint Committee
Withdrawal Notice.

Deciding whether to continue or discontinue with any procurement or project
forming part of the Swansea Bay City Deal in the administrative area of a
Council which withdraws from the Joint Committee.

Agreeing the terms for termination of this Agreement by agreement of all the
Councils.

Deciding on actions to implement the provisions of the dispute resolution
procedure in clause 25.

Agreeing alternative funding options for the Annual Costs Budget.

Approving Project Conditions for projects in their areas in accordance with
clause 12.

C:5159682v19 Page 60



11

2.1

3.1

3.2

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

Schedule 6 Economic Strategy Board
Purpose
To provide strategic direction for the Swansea Bay City Deal and provide
strategic advice to the Joint Committee on matters relating to the Swansea Bay
City Region. Specifically the role shall:

(a) Submit strategic objectives for the Swansea Bay City Region.

(b) Monitor progress with regard to the delivery of the Swansea Bay City
Deal in accordance with diagram B in Schedule 8.

(© Oversee the production of business cases and put forward
recommendations to the Joint Committee for approval.

(d) Make recommendations to the Joint Committee.

Reporting

Joint Committee

Membership

Members shall be appointed through an open recruitment and nomination
process. Members including co-opted members of the Joint Committee shall
submit proposals to the Joint Committee for the recruitment and nomination
process. Those proposals shall be subject to unanimous agreement by
members of the Joint Committee the Welsh Government and the UK
Government. Members shall include:

@) 1 private sector chair or other suitable representative.

(b) 5 private sector representatives.

(© 2 higher education or further education representatives.

(d) 2 life sciences or well-being representatives.

(e) The leaders of the Councils or their nominated representatives.

The head of paid service of each of the Councils or their nominated
representative shall be entitled to attend meetings of the Economic Strategy
Board as an adviser or an observer but shall not have a vote.

Chair

The Chair shall be appointed following nominations by the unanimous
agreement of: the Welsh Government, the UK Government and the Joint

Committee.

The Chair shall be a private sector representative or other suitable
representative.

The Chair shall be accountable to the Joint Committee.

The Chair shall be reviewed annually.
C:5159682v19 Page 61



5.1

5.2

5.3

6.1

6.2

6.3

7.1

8.1

9.1

10

10.1

Voting/Agreement

The Economic Strategy Board shall not have any formal decision-making
powers.

The Economic Strategy Board shall reach agreement by consensus.

Where alternative views and opinions are expressed these shall be recorded
and included in any reporting process.

Conflicts of Interest

To allow the Economic Strategy Board to undertake all its functions a clear
distinction shall be drawn between those involved in specific scheme
development and those preparing recommendations on those schemes to the
Joint Committee. A robust system of declaration of conflict of interest shall be
put in place.

Occasions shall arise where conflicts of interest preclude specific named
officers, individuals, committee members and local authorities from taking part in
discussions which shall form views and recommendations on specific matters.
Members have an obligation to declare any such interests which shall then be
recorded.

The leaders of the Councils shall be subject to the codes of conduct of their
Councils.  Co-opted members of the Economic Strategy Board who are not
members of the Councils shall be subject to the rules of conduct set out at
Schedule 13 and shall sign an undertaking in the form set out at Schedule 13 to
confirm that they will abide by those rules of conduct.

Proceedings of meetings

The Regional Office shall arrange for minutes of the proceedings of each
meeting to be taken, approved and recorded.

Quorum

For the Economic Strategy Board to agree and submit recommendations,
membership must be represented up to a quorate equivalent to that of half of
the membership of the Economic Strategy Board which must include leaders or
their representatives from each of the Councils.

Frequency

The Economic Strategy Board shall meet with the following frequency or as and
when required:

(@) Quarterly in advance of any Joint Committee meeting; and

(b) When necessary to deal with business as agreed by the Chair of the
Economic Strategy Board.

Allowances

There shall be no allowances paid.

C:5159682v19 Page 62



11 Servicing
11.1 The Regional Office shall organise appropriate servicing for the meetings.
12 Sub groups

12.1 Thematic sub committees may be established as and when required and shall
report to the Economic Strategy Board.

C:5159682v19 Page 63



Schedule 7 Projects Funded By the Swansea Bay City Deal

Total

PROJ ECT NAME Private Public City Deal Project

Costs

GO em) | Em) G

Internet of Economic Acceleration

Digital Infrastructure 30.0 0.0 25.0 55.0
Swansea City & Waterfront Digital District 23.9 94.3 50.0 168.2
Creative Digital Cluster - Yr Egin 3.0 16.3 5.0 24.3
Centre of Excellence in Next Generation Digital 27.0 55 23.0 55.5
Services (CENGS)

Skills & Talent Initiative 4.0 16.0 10.0 30.0

Internet of Life Science & Wellbeing
Life Science & Well-being Campuses 10.0 20.0 15.0 45.0
Life Science & Well-being Village 127.5 32.0 40.0 199.5

Internet of Energy
Homes as Power Stations 382.9 119.2 15.0 517 .1
Pembroke Dock Marine 259 22.4 28.0 76.3

Smart Manufacturing
Factory of the Future 3.2 10.3 10.0 23.5
Steel Science Centre 0.0 60.0 20.0 80.0

TOTALS 637.4 385.9 241.01 1,274.3

Funding allocations are subject to approval of Project Business Cases

C:5159682v19

Page 64



Schedule 8 Project Approval Process

DIAGRAM A - Full Business Case Approval Process for agreed Swansea Bay City Deal Projects.

Completed Full Business Cases for each of the 11 projects will undergo initial quality assessment by the Regional office and
Accountable Body before being considered by the respective Swansea Bay City Deal governance structures as highlighted

below.

If business case does not meel
quality assessment cntena
Regional Office will return to
project authonty lead to amend

START

Project Authority Lead
Completes full business case and

submits to Regional Office following
approval from appropriate Lead LA

Business case s retumed via
the Regional Office to the
project authority lead to amend

accordingly. accordingly
V ‘
Regional Office - Undertakes quality assessment including checks
for completeness, scheme has been development in accordance with
agreed package and with WBFG Act. The Accountable Body will
simultaneously conduct an assessment of the financial profile
UK / Weish
Government ¢
During inttial quality
assessment ‘ _ e :
process iterative If business case meets quality assessment criteria Regional
assessment of the Office will compile a report for submission to Programme
full business cases Board and Economic Strategy Board
will be conducted by
UK and Welsh —\] l/-
Government
Programme Board (PB)
PB assess the business case focusing on financial viability, |
deliverability and risk and makes recommendation to the JC
on whether the business case should proceed or not JC decision
v fed back to
ESB, PB &
project
Economic Strategy Board (ESB) authority lead
ESB assess the business case against the strategic aims | via Regional
and objectives of the SBCR City Deal and makes Office and
recommendation to the JC on whether to proceed or not course of
= action agreed
Within
1 month
The ESB submits recommendations to Jeint Commitiee via
Regional Office
Joint Committee (JC)

The Joint Committee considers the recommendations submitted by the ESB. JC has legal right
to either accept recommendations of the ESB or take altemative course of action based on

information available

l l

JC approves project for
submission to Governments

JC does not approve project for
submission to Govemments

BF

Receive full business case for approving the release of funding

UK and Welsh Government

Does not
approve project

C:5159682v19

Page 65



Diagram B - Project Monitoring

Delivery Lead

Submits quarterly performance report to Regional Office

Regional Office
Review performance against agreed milestones for each project and submits combined report covering all
projects for consideration by PB
Regional office report progress on all communication and business engagement activity

Programme Board (PB)
PB reviews progress against agreed milestones, focusing on delivery and financial
risks. The PB identifies any necessary remedial action.

JC decision fed back

to ESB, PB & Delivery Economic Strategy Board (ESB)
Lead via Regional ESB reviews project progress against agreed milestones and makes
Office recommendations to the Joint Committee where remedial action is

required. ESB also reviews business engagement and supply chain
developments and advises the JC on progress and/or action required

The ESB submits recommendations to Joint Committee via Regional Office

N

Joint Committee (JC)
The Joint Committee reviews project progress against all agreed milestones taking into consideration any
comments or recommendations made by the ESB.

JC approves progress report before

IC agree mitigating actions submission to Governments. Any remedial
and critical timescale actions are fed back to the sponsor, ESB and
PB

UK and Welsh Government
Receive quarterly performance report via Regional Office

C:5159682v19

Page 66



Schedule 9 Flow of Funding

SWANSEA BAY CITY DEAL FLOW OF FINANCES (LOCAL)

£241m City Deal funds will
flow through WG on equal
split over 15 years i.e.
£16.1m p/a from 2018/19

Accountable Body will distribute
Capital for repayment to each LA
on proportionate basis (Please
refer to methodology annex for %

Welsh Government

UK Government
Contribution

Contribution

v

Welsh Government

'

Accountable Body
(CCC)

splits)

Payment made to Lead Authority
specific projects (Carmarthenshire

in arrears based County Council)
on statement of

spend

C:5159682v19

v v v

Lead Authority
(City and County of
Swansea)

Lead Authority
(Neath Port Talbot County
Borough Council)

Page 67

Lead Authority
(Pembrokeshire
County Council)



SWANSEA BAY CITY DEAL FLOW OF FINANCES (REGIONAL)

Welsh Government UK Government
Contribution Contribution

v

Welsh Government

!

£241m City Deal funds will
flow through WG on equal
split over 15 years i.e.
£16.1m p/a from 2018/19

Accountable Body will distribute

Capital for repayment to each LA Accountable BOdy
on proportionate basis (Please
refer to methodology annex for % (CCC)
splits)
Payment made to Lead Authority Lead Authority Lead Authority Lead Authority
specific projects (Carmarthenshire (City and County of (Neath Port Talbot County (Pembrokeshire
in arrears based County Council) Swansea) Borough Council) County Council)
on statement of
spend

In calculating the
Capital annual
repayment, the

methodology for

each LA includes

Regional projects

equally split

C:5159682v19

Page 68



Schedule 10 — Change in Project Status

CHANGE IN PROJECT STATUS

Lead Authority informs Regional Office of project withdrawal /
change in lead status

N/

Regional Office informs PB

N/

PB reviews financial implications, consideration of abortive cost
and presents report to ESB

N/

ESB consider implications and provide strategic steer to JC on
process for selecting new projects or reallocation of funds

N/

WG & UK
Joint Committee consider recommendations and agrees way Government
forward informed of decision
l l and approval sought

Regional Office commence bidding| | Reallocation to current scheme
process where additional outcomes are
agreed by the JC

S N

PB & ESB undertake initial

i Project Lead informed

S(t)r:ttltiagéc assessment of strategic cases )

Case and make recommendations on

how to progress
Joint Committee review
recommendations
Alternative
: Move to Next Needs Further .
Funding Route Stage Work Rejected
Outline

Business

Case

l

Project and Lead Authority progress to Outline Business Case

V4

C:5159682v19

Page 69



Schedule 11 - Welsh Government Guidance on Flexible Use of Capital Receipts (as issued 3rd May

2018)

. . . - L
Education and Public Services Group —= (‘ff??
Y Grwp Addysg a Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus %/ Zr |

|

Llywodraeth Cymru
Welsh Government

To:
Chief Finance Officers
Local Authorities listed in Annex A

cc:
Chief Finance Officers of Police Forces in Wales
03 May 2018

Dear Chief Finance Officers

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2003 SECTIONS 16(2) (b) AND 20: TREATMENT OF
CERTAIN COSTS AS CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

1. This direction supersedes the previous direction issued on 15 March 2016.

2. In December 2017, the Secretary of State announced, the continuation of the
capital receipts flexibility programme for a further three years, to give local
authorities in England the continued freedom to use capital receipts from the
sale of their own assets (excluding Right to Buy receipts) to help fund the
revenue costs of transformation projects and release savings.

3. Accordingly, the Cabinet Secretary for Local Government and Public Services
directs, in exercise of his powers under sections 16(2)(b) and 20 of the Local
Government Act 2003 (“the Act”), that the local authorities listed in Annex A
(“the Authorities”) treat as capital expenditure, expenditure which:

a. is incurred by the Authorities that is designed to generate ongoing
revenue savings in the delivery of public services and/or transform
service delivery in a way that reduces costs or demand for services in
future years for any of the public sector delivery partners; and

b. is properly incurred by the Authorities for the financial years that begin
on 1 April 2016, 1 April 2017, 1 April 2018, 1 April 2019, 1 April 2020
and 1 April 2021.

( } Parc Cathays » Cathays Park Llinell Ymholiadau Cymraeg 0845 010 4400
byt Caerdydd - Cardiff English Enquiry Line 0845 010 3300
- CF10 3NQ Ebost » Email: LGFPMail@wales.gsi.gov.uk
BUDDSODDWE MEWN FOBL
INVESTOR IN FEOFLE

C:5159682v19 Pag e 70



In further exercise of Welsh Ministers’ powers under section 20 of the Act, it is
a condition of this direction that expenditure treated as capital expenditure in
accordance with it, may only be met from capital receipts — within the meaning
of section 9 of the Act and regulations made under that section (see Part 3 of
S| 2003/3239(W319) as amended), which have been received in the years to
which this direction applies.

This direction is given for the purposes of Chapter 1 of Part 1 of the Act only.

It does not convey any other consent that may be required or any view as to
the propriety of the expenditure. It is for each Authority to be satisfied that any
amount to which this direction is applied is properly incurred in the financial
year concerned.

When applying the direction, authorities are required to have regard to the
Guidance on Flexible Use of Capital Receipts issued by Welsh Ministers
under section 15(1)(a) of the Act.

If you have any queries in connection with the above, please do not hesitate to
contact Local Government Finance Policy Division at:
LGFPMail@wales.gsi.gov.uk

Yours faithfully
el
KO

Rob Hay fﬂ
Deputy Directgr, Local Government Finance Policy Division

Authorised to sign this direction by the Cabinet Secretary for Local Government and

Public

C:5159682v19

Services

Page 71



Annex A: List of Authorities to which this direction applies

Welsh Local Authorities

Isle of Anglesey County Council

Gwynedd County Council

Conwy County Borough Council
Denbighshire County Council

Flintshire County Council

Wrexham County Borough Council

Powys County Council

Ceredigion County Council

Pembrokeshire County Council
Carmarthenshire County Council

Swansea City and County Council

Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council
Bridgend County Borough Council

Vale of Glamorgan County Borough Council
Rhondda Cynon Taff County Borough Council
Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council
Caerphilly County Borough Council
Blaenau Gwent County Borough Council
Torfaen County Borough Council
Monmouthshire County Council

Newport City Council

Cardiff City and County Council

Welsh Fire & Rescue Authoritie

North Wales Fire and Rescue Authority
South Wales Fire and Rescue Authority
Mid and West Wales Fire and Rescue Authority

' Welsh Police i@ Crime-Cdmmissionern - = =
Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed-Powys
Police and Crime Commissioner for Gwent

Police and Crime Commissioner for North Wales
Police and Crime Commissioner for South Wales

C: 9682v19
Piesenai Page 72



Welsh Government

GUIDANCE ON FLEXIBLE USE OF CAPITAL RECEIPTS

April 2018

FPART 1 of this document provides an informal commentary on Part 2.

FART 2 contains the statutory guidance to which local authorities must have regard.

[PART 1]

C:5159682v19

INFORMAL COMMENTARY ON THE GUIDANCE ON FLEXIBLE USE
OF CAPITAL RECEIPTS

[References lo the paragraphs in the formal guidance are in square brackelis]
POWER UNDER WHICH THE GUIDANCE IS ISSUED [1.1]

1. The Local Government Act 2003 (“the Act”), section 15{1} requires alocal
authority *.. .to have regard {a) to such guidance as the Secretary of State may
issue, and {b} to such other guidance as the Secretary of State may by
regulations specify...”. and section 24 of the Act states "In its application to
Wales, ...for any reference to the Secretary of State there were substituted a
reference to the Welsh Ministers.”

2. The guidance on the flexible use of capital receipts in Part 2 of this document is
issued under section 15{1} of the Act and authorities are therefore required to
have regard to it.

3. Two codes of practice issued by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and
Accountancy {CIPFA) contain guidance on capital receipts and local authority
accounting that complements the ¥elsh Government guidance. These
mublications are:

= The Prudential Cade for Capital Finance in Lacal Authorities
= The Code of Practice an Lacal Autharily Accounting.

Page 73




C:5159682v19

4. Local autharities are required to have regard to the current edition of Treasury
Management i1 Public Services: Cade of Practice and Sectoral Guidance Motes
by Regulation 19 of the Local Autharities {Capital Finance and Accounting)
{Wales) Regufations 2003 {Sf 2003/3238 {W318)) and to the Local Authority

Accaunting Code as proper practices for preparing accounts under section 21{2}
of the Act.

APPLICATION [3.1- 3.2]

5. This guidance should be read alongside the relevant direction issued by YYelsh
Ministers.

6. This guidance applies with effect from 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2022 —i.e. for the
financial year 2016-17 and for each subsequent financial year to which the
flexible use of capital receipts direction applies.

7. The direction makes it clear that local authorities cannot borrow to finance the
revenue costs of service reform. Local authorities can only use capital receipts
from the disposal of property plant and equipment assets received in the years in
which this flexibility is offered. Local Authorities may not use their existing stock
of capital receipts to finance the revenue costs of qualifying projects..

QUALIFYING EXPENDITURE [4.1 - 4.3]

8. Welsh Ministers believe that individual authorities and groups of authorities are
hest placed to decide which projects will be most effective for their areas. The
key criterion to use when deciding whether expenditure can be funded by the
capital receipts flexibility is that it is forecast to generate ongoing savings or
reduce revenue costs or pressures over the longer term to an authority, or several
authorities, and/or to another public body.

8. Alist of types of project that would gqualify for the flexible use of capital receipts is
ncluded in the guidance. This list is not meant to be prescriptive or exhaustive
and individual authorities with projects that will generate ongoing savings ar
reduce revenue costs or pressures over the longer term which are not induded in
the list can apply the flexibility to fund those projects.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY [5.1 - 5.6]

10. Welsh Ministers believe it is important that individual authorities demonstrate the
highest standards of accountahility and transparency. The guidance
recommends that each authority should prepare a separate disclosure note of the
individual projects that have been funded or part funded through capital receipts
flexibility. The dsclosure note should be approved by the Responsible Financial

Page 74



(Officer at the same time the statutory accounts are certified and can be included

as part of the year-end accounts documentation. The disclosure note should be

considered and approved by the person presiding at the committee or meeting at
which approval of the statement of accounts was given.

C:5159682v19

Page 75



Welsh Government Guidance on Flexible Use of Capital Receipts (as issued 3rd May 2018)

[PART 2]

Welsh Government
GUIDANCE ON FLEXIBLE USE OF CAPITAL RECEIPTS

Issued under section 15(1){a) of the Local Government Act 2003
and effective from 1 April 2016

C:5159682v19

(1) POWER UNDER WHICH THE GUIDANCE IS ISSUED

1.1The following guidance is issued by Welsh Ministers under section 15{1}a} of the
L acaf Gavernment Act 2003,

(2) DEFINITION OF TERMS

2.1In this guidance, the Act means the Local Government Act 2003,

2.2Local authority has the meaning given in section 23 of the Act {and in
regulations made under that section).

2.3Capital receipt has the meaning given in section 8 of the Act fand in regulations
made under that section]).

2.4 Qualifying expenditure means expenditure on a project where incurring up-front
costs will generate ongoing savings; reduce revenue costs or pressures over the
longer term. The main part of this guidance details the types of project that will
generate qualifying expenditure.

2.5The direction means a direction made under section 16{2}{b} of the Act, to allow
named local authorities to treat qualifying expenditure as being capital

expenditure.

2.6Prudential indicators has the meaning given in the CIPFA code of practice, The
Prudentiaf Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorilies.

Page 76




(3) APPLICATION
Effective date

3.1This guidance applies with effect from 1 April 20186, for the period for which
flexible use of capital receipts will apply. This will be set out in the direction.

Local authorities

3.2This guidance applies to all local authorities in Wales named in the directions
issued by ¥Welsh Ministers.

(4) QUALIFYING EXPENDITURE
Types of gualifying expenditure

4.1 Qualifying expenditure is expenditure on any project that is designed to generate
ongoing revenue savings in the delivery of public services andfor transform
service delivery in a way that reduces costs or demand for services in future years
for the Authority or any of the delivery partners. This includes investment which
supports economic growth projects which are also designed to reduce revenue
costs or pressures over the longer term. Within this definition, itis for individual
local authorities to decide whether or not a project qualifies for the flexibility.

4.2The set up and implementation costs of any new processes or arrangements can
be classified as qualifying expenditure. The ongoing revenue costs of the new
processes or arrangements cannot be dassified as qualifying expenditure.

Examples of gualifying expenditure

4.3There are a wide range of projects that could generate qualifying expenditure and
the list below is not prescriptive. Examples of projects include:

= Preparatory work necessary to support local authority mergers as part of the
programme to reform local government in Wales;

= Sharing back-office and administrative services with one or more other council
or public sector body;

= |nvestment in service reform feasibility work, eg. setting up pilot schemes;

=« Collaboration between local authorities and central government to free up land
for economic use;

C:5159682v19

Page 77



C:5159682v19

« Funding the cost of service reconfiguration, restructuring or rationalisation
{staff or non-staff), where this leads to ongoing efficiency savings or service
transfarmation;

= Sharing Chief Executives, management teams or staffing structures;

« [riving a digital approach to the delivery of more efficient public services and
how the public interacts with constituent authorities where possible;

= Aggregating procurement on common goods and services where possible,
either as part of local arrangements or using the National Procurement
Service, Crown Commercial Services or other central purchasing bodies which
operate in accordance with the Wales Procurement Policy Statement;

= |mproving systems and processes to tackle fraud and corruption in ling with
the Local Government Fraud and Corruption Strateqgy — this could include an
element of staff training;

« Setting up alternative delivery models to deliver services more efficiently and
bring in revenue {faor example, through selling services to others); and

« |ntegrating public facing services across two or more public sector bodies {for
example children’'s social care, trading standards) to generate savings or to
transform service delivery.

= |nvestment which supports economic growth projects which are also designed
to reduce revenue costs or pressures over the longer term, across one ar
more local authorities and/or other public sector bodies.

(5) ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY

Preparation

5.1Following the end of each financial year, as part of the preparation of its annual
accounts, a local authority should ensure it prepares a disclosure note in
accordance with the timetable in paragraph 5.5

Content

5.2As5 a minimum, the disclosure note should list each project that made use of the
capital receipts flexibility, ensuring that it details the split of up-front funding for
each project between capital receipts and other sources, and that on a project-hy-
project basis, setting out the expected savings and/or benefits of investment.

5.3The dsclosure note may also include any other matters considered to be relevant.

Approval

5.4 The disclosure note should be considered and approved by resolution of the
committee or of the members meeting as a whole.

Page 78



Timing

5.5 For any financial year, a disclosure note should be prepared and approved no
later than approval of the statement of accounts.

Publication

5.6 Welsh Ministers expect the disclosure note once approved, to be made available
to the public free of charge, in print or online.

C:5159682v19

Page 79



JUE:

Llywodraeth Cymru

Mr C Moore Welsh Government
S. 151 Officer -~ Swansea Bay City Region

Director of Corporate Services

Carmarthenshire County Council

County Hall

CARMARTHEN

SA31 1JP

16 May 2018

Dear C Lmo

Swansea Bay City Region City Deal: Financial Arrangements

| refer to the ongoing discussions you and others have been having with my predecessor and other
colleagues in Welsh Government regarding the Swansea Bay City Region financing arrangements.
In particular these have covered how the authorities within the city region are seeking flexibility to
manage the financing of the City Deal projects, in the same way that authorities have flexibility to
effectively and efficiently manage the funding of their own Capital Programmes.

As set out in the Heads of Terms, the Welsh Government and UK Government have committed to
invest a combined total of up to £241 million on specific interventions, subject to the submission and
approval of the full business cases in relation to the 11 identified projects and the agreement of
governance arrangements. This funding is to be provided as capital funding. However, the Region

has indicated that the nature of some projects means they require revenue rather than capital
support.

Subject to confirmation by HM Treasury, the government capital grant funding is to be provided on a
flat profile with payments of the grant being made over a 15-year period. The local authorities within
the City Deal region are expected to manage the funding in respect of the individual projects in the
most cost effective and efficient way. There are no plans for Welsh Government to set additional

—eet@rmSs and conditions on the use of the capital grant funding or restrict any otherwise permitted
funding mechanism beyond those already set out in the Heads of Terms and the standard
requirements of grant offers to ensure the maintenance of the highest standards of regularity and
propriety for the use public monies. Within this, we expect each local authority to optimise its own
funding position.

As indicated previously, the Welsh Government will expect the equivalent value of the allocated
grant funds to be clearly expended on the projects as per the business cases submitted.

( ‘)E ' Ffon * Tel 029 20826871
B

BUDDSODDWR MEWN POBL Parc Cathays « Cathays Park  LocalGovernmentSettlement@wales
INVESTOR IN PEOPLE Caerdydd » Cardiff .gsi.gov.uk
CF10 3NQ

C:5159682v19 Page 80



In light of the Swansea Bay City Region’s need for revenue funds to support some of its projects, the
Welsh Government recognises the four authorities will need to manage their capital funding so as to
enable revenue expenditure to be supported. If this is to be achieved (at least in part) through the
use of the local authorities’ available Capital Receipts, local authorities will need to have reference
to the latest Direction from Welsh Ministers on the use of capital receipts, issued under section 15(1)
(a) of the Local Government Act 2003 and the accompanying statutory Guidance on Flexible Use of
Capital Receipts.

This may involve each local authority allocating borrowing against other capital projects within its
capital programme, to maximise flexibility and make most effective use of resources (including the
use of Reserves). This will be a matter for the local authorities concerned, provided they clearly
identify that the total value of the City Deal funding provided has been incurred as expenditure on
City Deal projects.

As was set out in the Heads of Terms, the Swansea Bay City Region will need to work with the UK
Government and the Welsh Government to develop an agreed implementation, monitoring and
evaluation plan for whole Deal which sets out the proposed approach to evaluating the impact of
delivery.

Linked to this, as part of the grant procedures, the authorities will need to demonstrate clearly that
all expenditure has been incurred on each project in line with the relevant business case. This is in
line with the City Deal ethos of local accountability, where we have already set out in our letter of 7
July 2017 to the City Deal Accountable Officer (Mark James) that we do not intend to impose
additional terms and conditions on the grant offers beyond those required as a matter of course to
ensure financial propriety and good governance.

I hope this letter gives you and your colleagues within the City Region sufficient reassurance and
confidence in relation to the available funding flexibilities to ensure all the projects can be delivered.

Yours sincerely

9L-~x_wa CANS_

Judith Cole
Deputy Director
Local Government Finance Policy, Workforce and Social Partnerships

C:5159682v19 Page 81



Cabinet Secretary for Finance

Mark Drakeford AC/AM -'?:; f(?
Ysgrifennydd y Cabinet dros Gyllid %/ 1}('
Veg)

Llywodraeth Cymru
Welsh Government

Ein cyf/Our ref: MA-P-MD-1201-18
Rob Stewart
Leader, City and County of Swansea

rob.stewart@swansea.qov.uk

11 April 2018

Dear Rob

| write further to recent correspondence and discussions with Leaders and yourself
regarding the retention of non-domestic rates in relation to the Swansea Bay City Region
City Deal.

This letter sets out an offer of an in-principle agreement to the original proposal which you
put forward at the meeting with Leaders and the Secretary of State for Wales. |intend to
initiate arrangements to allow the region to retain 50% of the additional net yield in
non-domestic rates generated by the 11 projects which are to be delivered by the Deal.

Such an arrangement, of course, will rely upon a commitment from all four authorities to
provide the information needed to enable my officials to assess the impact of the changes
and to implement them.

Taking this forward will also involve each authority engaging in subsequent discussions with
my officials in line with the principles set out in my letter of 10 August. Any change to the
current arrangements for non-domestic rates will have significant wider implications for both
local authorities and for the budgetary processes of the Welsh Government. These
implications need to be fully understood and managed.

| need to be clear that my offer is predicated on the original proposal put to me by the four
local authorities. That means that all four authorities will need to meet the forecast
borrowing costs and manage any risk of the retained share of the rates yield being lower
than estimated. Project business cases will still need to demonstrate that viable financial
plans are in place for each project.

Bae Caerdydd « Cardiff Bay Canolfan Cyswllt Cyntaf / First Point of Contact Centre:
Caerdydd « Cardiff 0300 0604400
CF99 1HA Correspondence.Mark. Drakeford®@gov.wales

C:5159682v19

Page 82



C:5159682v19

It is also the case that the changes needed to enable any share of the rates yield to be
retained must be carried out within the relevant legal and financial governance
requirements. The advice provided to me suggests that this is not a simple matter. The
non-domestic rates system is complex and governed by a detailed statutory framework,
consultative arrangements and public finance requirements. Whilst we will, as always,
make every effort to ensure the administrative procedures are as simple and effective as
possible, we will all have to operate within the required standards. | therefore ask that the
four authorities work with my officials to ensure that the necessary changes are effected in
line with these long-standing requirements.

| am very pleased that our work together has led to the proposals set out in this letter. |
would be grateful for your confirmation that the four authorities wish to accept this offer and
make the commitments outlined above so that we may move forward and focus our efforts
on the delivery of the Deal.

| am copying this letter to the four Leaders and the Secretary of State for Wales.

[\\ ZaVa Y t

Mark Drakeford AM/AC
Ysgrifennydd y Cabinet dros Gyllid
Cabinet Secretary for Finance

Copies to:

Secretary of State for Wales

Clir Emlyn Dole, Leader, Carmarthenshire County Council

Clir Rob Jones, Leader, Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council
Clir David Simpson, Leader, Pembrokeshire County Council

Clir Mark James, Chief Executive, Carmarthenshire County Council

Page 83



Schedule 12 - Terms of Reference of Joint Scrutiny Committee

1. Membership.
1.1 The Joint Scrutiny Committee shall comprise of 12 members in total, 3 each from the 4 Constituent Authorities.

1.2 The membership may not include Executive Members

2. Purpose
2.1 The purpose of the Joint Scrutiny Committee shall be:

2.1.1  Performing the overview and scrutiny function for the Swansea Bay City Region City Deal (as specified in the Swansea Bay City
Deal Joint Committee Agreement) on behalf of the 4 Constituent Authorities;

2.1.2 To develop a Forward Work Programme reflecting the functions under cl. 2.1.1 above

2.1.3 To seek reassurance and consider if the City Deal is operating according to the Joint Committee Agreement, its Business Plan,
timetable and / or is being managed effectively;

2.1.4 To monitor any City Deal Regional projects against its Programme Plan

2.1.5 To make any reports and recommendations to the Constituent Authorities, whether to their executive Boards or Full Council as
appropriate, in respect of any function which has been delegated to the Joint Committee pursuant to the Joint Committee
Agreement

2.2 For the avoidance of doubt scrutiny of individual Authorities projects’ shall be a matter for the relevant Constituent Authorities’
Scrutiny Committee

3. Chair
3.1 The chair and Vice-Chair of the Joint Scrutiny Committee shall be elected by the Joint Scrutiny Committee
3.2 The chair of the Scrutiny Committee shall not be from the same Authority as the Chair of the Joint Committee

4. Voting
4.1 Each member of the Joint Scrutiny Committee shall have one vote. Decisions of the Joint Scrutiny Committee shall be made by simple
majority vote.
4.2 In the event of equality of votes the Chair of the Joint Scrutiny Committee shall have a casting vote.

5. Conflicts of Interest
5.1 Members of the Joint Scrutiny Committee must declare any interest either before or during the meetings of the Joint Scrutiny
Committee (and withdraw from that meeting if necessary) in accordance with their Council’s Code of Conduct or as required by law.

6. Proceedings of Meetings
6.1 The rules of procedure of the Host Authority for the scrutiny function shall apply to meetings of the Joint Scrutiny Committee
6.2 Members of the Joint Scrutiny Committee shall be subject to the Codes of Conduct for Members of their Councils.

7. Quorum

7.1 The quorum for meetings shall be no less than 8 members, which must include at least 1 member from each of the 4 Authorities

8. Frequency
8.1 The Joint Scrutiny Committee shall meet quarterly. Additional meetings may be convened by the Chair on at least 7 clear days notice.

9. Allowances
9.1 No allowances shall be paid

10. Servicing
10.1 The Host Authority for the joint scrutiny functions shall be Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council

11. Sub-Groups
11.1  The Joint Scrutiny Committee by agreement may create Task and Finish Groups.

12. Review
12.1 The Terms of reference of the Joint Scrutiny Committee shall be reviewed annually

C:5159682v19

Page 84



Schedule 13 - Rules of Conduct of Co-opted Members of the Joint Committee and the Economic Strategy Board

11

1.2

10

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

11

12

12.1

12.2

13

14

14.1

14.2

15

These rules apply to you in your capacity as:
a co-opted member of the Joint Committee or
the Economic Strategy Board of the Swansea Bay City Region.
You must observe these rules whenever you attend a meeting of the Joint Committee or the Economic Strategy Board.

You shall conduct yourself appropriately and shall treat others with respect at meetings of the Joint Committee and the
Economic Strategy Board.

You shall not conduct yourself in a manner which could reasonably be regarded as bringing the Joint Committee or the
Economic Strategy Board or the Swansea Bay City Region into disrepute.

You shall abide by any policies and procedures adopted by the Joint Committee.

You shall prepare fully for meetings of the Joint Committee and the Economic Strategy Board including reading papers and
seeking advice from the Regional Office when necessary.

You shall comply with any request for information from the Accountable Officer or the monitoring officer of the Accountable Body
properly and reasonably required in connection with your role as a member of the Joint Committee or the Economic Strategy
Board.

As part of your role you may be requested by the Joint Scrutiny Committee to provide information or to attend a meeting and
answer questions in connection with your activities as a member Joint Committee the Economic Strategy Board or the Swansea
Bay City Deal, as the case may be and you are expected to comply with any such request.

You shall not disclose confidential information nor any information relating to business of the Joint Committee or the Economic
Strategy Board which is exempt from public access

You shall avoid situations where your interests will conflict with the interests of the Swansea Bay City Region.

You shall regard yourself as having a personal interest in any business of the Joint Committee or Economic Strategy Board if it
relates to or is likely to affect:

Any employment or business carried on by you or any person who employs or has appointed you.

Any firm in which you are a partner or any company for which you are a remunerated director.

Any corporate body which has a place of business or land in the Swansea Bay City Region and in which you have a beneficial
interest in a class of securities of that body that exceeds the nominal value of £25,000 or one hundredth of the total issued share
capital of that body.

Any land in which you have a beneficial interest which is in the Swansea Bay City Region.

Any land in the Swansea Bay City Region in which you have a licence to occupy for 28 days or longer.

You shall regard yourself as having a prejudicial interest in any business of the Joint Committee or Economic Strategy Board if
you have a personal interest which a member of the public with knowledge of the relevant facts would reasonably regard as so
significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgment of the public interest.

You shall inform the Regional Office of your personal interests so that the Regional Office may register your interests on a
register of interests of co-opted members of the Joint Committee and the Economic Strategy Board. You shall inform the
Regional Office of your personal interests:

No later than 28 days after your acceptance of co-option to the Joint Committee or the Economic Strategy Board; and

No later than 28 days after you become aware of any new personal interests.

If you have a personal interest in any business which is considered at a meeting that you attend of the Joint Committee or the
Economic Strategy Board you must disclose to that meeting the existence and nature of your interest before or at the
commencement of the consideration of the business or when the interest becomes apparent.

If any of the following circumstances apply in respect of an item of business of the Joint Committee or the Economic Strategy
Board you shall subject to paragraph 15 withdraw from the meeting and you shall not participate in the consideration of the

business if:

The business relates to project for which the body which hominated or appointed you to the Joint Committee or the Economic
Strategy Board is the Delivery Lead.

You have a prejudicial interest in the business.

Where you have a prejudicial interest in any business considered by the Joint Committee or the Economic Strategy Board you
may attend a meeting of the Joint Committee or the Economic Strategy Board at which the business is considered for the
purpose of making representations answering questions or giving evidence to the same extent that members of the public are
allowed to attend the meeting for the purpose of making representations answering questions or giving evidence.

C:5159682v19

Page 85



Undertaking to abide by the rules of conduct

I (name of co-opted member) undertake to abide by the rules of conduct of co-opted members of the Joint Committee and the Economic
Strategy Board of the Swansea Bay City Region

Signed -- e m S

Date -- e IR

C:5159682v19

Page 86



Table : City Deal — with Govt, Capital Receipts & Reserves Funding — Cash flow cost over 15
years

All £'000 Project | Year1l Year 2 Year 3 Year4 | Year 5 TOTAL

Cost Capital | Capital Capital | Capital | Capital | Revenue

NPT Projects - Capital

Homes as Power Stations 1,200 400 400 400

Steel Science Innovation Centre | 20,000 5,000 10,000 5,000

CENGS 2,000 2,000

Factory of the future 10,000 5,000 5,000

NPT Projects - Revenue

funded

Homes as Power Stations 1,800 1,800

CENGS 21,000 2,000 7,000 4,000 4,000 4,000
Total NPT Projects 56,000 9,400 22,400 16,200 4,000 4,000
NPT Share Regional Projects

Skills & Talent 2,000 400 400 400 400 400
Digital Infrastructure 5,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000
Projects Grand Total 63,000 | 10,800 23,800 17,600 5,400 5,400

Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5

Capital | Capital | Capital Capital | Capital

Cumulative Cap Expenditure 10,800 34,600 52,200 | 57,600 | 63,000
City Deal Funding (inc. regional

share) -4,200 -4,200 -4,200 | -4,200 -4,200
Cumulative Deal Funding -4,200 -8,400 | -12,600 | -16,800 | -21,000
Cash flow Shortfall 6,600 26,200 39,600 | 40,800 | 42,000
Interest Rate 3% 3% 3% 3% 3%
Revenue 'Cost' Shortfall 198 786 1,188 1,224 1,260

Year 6 Year 7 Year 8 Year 9 | Year 10

Capital | Capital | Capital Capital | Capital

Cumulative Cap Expenditure 63,000 63,000 63,000 | 63,000 | 63,000
City Deal Funding (inc. regional

share) -4,200 -4,200 -4,200 | -4,200 -4,200
Cumulative Deal Funding -25,200 | -29,400 | -33,600 | -37,800 | -42,000
Cash flow Shortfall 37,800 33,600 29,400 | 25,200 | 21,000
Interest Rate 3% 3% 3% 3% 3%
Revenue 'Cost' Shortfall 1,134 1,008 882 756 630

Yr i1l Yr 12 Yr 13 Yr 14 Yr 15

Capital | Capital | Capital Capital | Capital

Cumulative Cap Expenditure 63,000 63,000 63,000 | 63,000 | 63,000

City Deal Funding (inc. regional

share) -4,200 -4,200 -4,200 | -4,200 -4,200
Cumulative Deal Funding -46,200 | -50,400 | -54,600 | -58,800 | -63,000

Cash flow Shortfall 16,800 12,600 8,400 4,200 0

Interest Rate 3% 3% 3% 3% 3%

Revenue 'Cost' Shortfall 504 378 252 126 0 10,326
Shortfall in Revenue Funding 2,000
University funding of interest -5,995
Net Residual Cost 6,331

Page 87




This page is intentionally left blank



68 abed

IMPACT GRID OF CITY DEAL STRANDS ON FUTURE GENERATIONS ACT WELL-BEING GOALS &

WAYS OF WORKING

Goals/Ways of Working

Long Term Prevention Integration Collaboration Involvement

A Globally Responsible Wales

A Prosperous Wales

—

A Resilient Wales

A Healthier Wales

A More Equal Wales

Cohesive Communities

—

Vibrant Culture/Language

KEY (The stronger the colour, the greater the impact) Note

Economic Acceleration

The FGA does not apply to City Regions as they have no legal status and are not listed bodies

Smart Manufacturing

under the Act. However, they apply to City Deals because of the proposed governance model

Energy

based on local authorities.

Life Science & Well-Being

Cross Cutting Themes




This page is intentionally left blank



NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

COUNCIL

25™M July 2018

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND CHIEF DIGITAL
OFFICER — MRS K JONES AND THE HEAD OF LEGAL SERVICES - MR C
GRIFFITHS

Matter for Decision

Wards Affected: All

Establishment of a Joint Scrutiny Committee for the Swansea Bay City Region
Joint Working Agreement

Purpose of the Report

1. To confirm the establishment of a Joint Scrutiny Committee for the Swansea
Bay City Region

Background

2. Clause 20 of the Joint Working Agreement for the establishment of the
Swansea Bay City Region Joint Committee provides that the parties to this
Joint Working Agreement will establish a Joint Scrutiny Committee to ensure
greater public accountability over decisions made by the Joint Committee and
any of its sub-committees and related entities.

3. The member of the Joint Scrutiny Committee shall consist of 12 members.
Each of the authorities shall nominate three members for appointment to the
Joint Scrutiny Committee.

4. It has been determined that Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council will be
the host authority for the Joint Scrutiny Arrangements.

5. These members must be nominated by each Council and shall be an elected
member of that Council but shall not be a member of that Council’'s executive

Page 91



9.

and shall not be a member of that Council’s executive and shall not be a
member of the Joint Committee

The role of the Joint Scrutiny Committee is to provide advice, challenge and
support to the Joint Committee. The Joint Scrutiny Committee shall be
required to:

Review and scrutinise the Joint Committee’s financial affairs;

Review and assess the Joint Committee’s risk management, internal control
and corporate governance arrangements.

Review and assess the economy, efficiency and effectiveness with which
resources have been used.

Make reports and recommendations to the Joint Committee in respect of
points (a) to (c)

. Schedule 12 of the Joint Working Agreement sets out the initial terms of

reference for the Joint Scrutiny Committee (Appendix 1) but it is recognised
that these will need to be further elaborated on by the Joint Scrutiny
Committee to fully ensure that scrutiny arrangements are robust and fully
review the workings of the Swansea Bay City Deal and the workings of the
Joint Committee.

Over the summer period and prior to the commencement of the first Joint
Scrutiny Meeting, officers will be liaising with colleagues in the other
authorities to determine a more comprehensive set of Terms of Reference, to
supplement those set out in the Joint Working Agreement and for ultimate
endorsement by members of the Joint Scrutiny Committee. The names of the
members will be tabled at the Council meeting of the 25" July 2018.

Financial Impact

There are no financial impacts associated with this Report.

Equality Impact Assessment

10.There are no equality impacts associated with this Report

Workforce Impacts

11.There are no workforce impacts associated with this Report

Legal Impacts

Page 92



12.1n exercise of powers under sections 101 and 102 of the Local Government
Act 1972, sections 19 and 20 of the Local Government Act 2000 and all other
enabling powers Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council may create a
Joint Scrutiny Committee with any other local authorities. The Joint Scrutiny
Committee shall provide a scrutiny function to ensure greater public
accountability over decisions made by the Joint Committee and any of its sub-
committees and related entities.

Consultation

13.There is no requirement under the Constitution for external consultation on
this item.

Recommendations

14.1t is recommended that:

(a) Members approve the establishment of a Joint Scrutiny Committee for the
Swansea Bay City Region Joint Working Agreement subject to the
Swansea Bay City Region Joint Working Agreement being entered into by
the other three local authorities;

(b) That delegated authority be granted to the Chief Executive in consultation
with the Leader of the Council to negotiate and agree a more detailed set
of terms of reference for the Joint Scrutiny Committee for the Swansea
Bay City Region Joint Working Agreement with the other authorities and
for such terms of reference to be endorsed at the first meeting of the Joint
Scrutiny Committee for the Swansea Bay City Region Joint Working
Agreement;

(c) That the Members identified in the addendum report that will be tabled
before members at the Council meeting of the 25" July 2018 be appointed
as the Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council members of the Joint
Scrutiny Committee for the Swansea Bay City Region Joint Working
Agreement

Reason for Proposed Decision

15.To ensure that suitable arrangements are in place to ensure that the Council
can meet the obligations set out in the Joint Working Agreement for the
Swansea Bay City Region

Appendices
16.None

Page 93



List of Background Papers

17.The Constitution of Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council
18. Draft Joint Working Agreement for the Swansea Bay City Region

Officer Contact

Mrs Karen Jones

Assistant Chief Executive and Chief Digital Officer
Telephone: 01639 763284

Email: k.jones3@npt.gov.uk

Mr Craig Griffiths

Head of Legal Services
Telephone 01639 763767
Email: c.griffiths2@npt.gov.uk

Page 94


mailto:c.griffiths2@npt.gov.uk

Appendix 1

Schedule 12 of the Draft Joint Working Arrangements for Swansea Bay City
Deal Region — Terms of Reference for Joint Scrutiny Committee

1.

2.

Membership.
1.1 The Joint Scrutiny Committee shall comprise of 12 members in total, 3 each from the 4

Constituent Authorities.
1.2 The membership may not include Executive Members

Purpose
2.1 The purpose of the Joint Scrutiny Committee shall be:

2.1.1 Performing the overview and scrutiny function for the Swansea Bay City Region
City Deal (as specified in the Swansea Bay City Deal Joint Committee Agreement)
on behalf of the 4 Constituent Authorities;

2.1.2 To develop a Forward Work Programme reflecting the functions under cl. 2.1.1
above

2.1.3 To seek reassurance and consider if the City Deal is operating according to the
Joint Committee Agreement, its Business Plan, timetable and / or is being
managed effectively;

2.1.4 To monitor any City Deal Regional projects against its Programme Plan

2.1.5 To make any reports and recommendations to the Constituent Authorities,
whether to their executive Boards or Full Council as appropriate, in respect of
any function which has been delegated to the Joint Committee pursuant to the
Joint Committee Agreement

2.2 For the avoidance of doubt scrutiny of individual Authorities projects’ shall be a matter
for the relevant Constituent Authorities’ Scrutiny Committee

Chair

3.1 The chair and Vice-Chair of the Joint Scrutiny Committee shall be elected by the Joint
Scrutiny Committee

3.2 The chair of the Scrutiny Committee shall not be from the same Authority as the Chair of
the Joint Committee

Voting

4.1 Each member of the Joint Scrutiny Committee shall have one vote. Decisions of the Joint
Scrutiny Committee shall be made by simple majority vote.

4.2 In the event of equality of votes the Chair of the Joint Scrutiny Committee shall have a
casting vote.

Conflicts of Interest

5.1 Members of the Joint Scrutiny Committee must declare any interest either before or
during the meetings of the Joint Scrutiny Committee (and withdraw from that meeting if
necessary) in accordance with their Council’s Code of Conduct or as required by law.

Proceedings of Meetings

Page 95



6.1 The rules of procedure of the Host Authority for the scrutiny function shall apply to
meetings of the Joint Scrutiny Committee

6.2 Members of the Joint Scrutiny Committee shall be subject to the Codes of Conduct for
Members of their Councils.

7. Quorum
7.1 The quorum for meetings shall be no less than 8 members, which must include at least 1
member from each of the 4 Authorities

8. Frequency
8.1 The Joint Scrutiny Committee shall meet quarterly. Additional meetings may be
convened by the Chair on at least 7 clear days notice.

9. Allowances
9.1 No allowances shall be paid

10. Servicing
10.1 The Host Authority for the joint scrutiny functions shall be Neath Port Talbot County
Borough Council

11. Sub-Groups
11.1  The Joint Scrutiny Committee by agreement may create Task and Finish Groups.

12. Review
12.1 The Terms of reference of the Joint Scrutiny Committee shall be reviewed annually

Page 96



Agenda Item 7

NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL CASTELL-NEDD PORT TALBOT

COUNCIL
25 July, 2018

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND CHIEF
DIGITAL OFFICER

SECTION A — MATTERS FOR DECISION
WARDS AFFECTED: ALL

Purpose of the Report

To make amendments to Committee/Outside Body membership
arrangements.

COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP/OUTSIDE BODY ARRANGEMENTS

Council is asked to agree to the following changes to Committee
Membership/ Outside Body Representation:-

Social Care, Health and Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee - replace Clir.
A.McGrath with ClIr. A.N.Woolcock

In addition | have been advised that the BME Forum has changed its
Constitution and is now a Charitable Incorporated Organisation. |
have received an invitation to nominate 3 Members to represent the
Authority and would propose that the 3 Members who sat on the
former BME Forum be appointed namely ClIrs. S.Rahaman, D.Jones
and D.W.Dauvies.

Financial Impact

There are no financial impacts.

Equality Impact Assessment

There are no Equality Impacts.

Page 97



Workforce Impacts
There are no Workforce Impacts.

Legal Powers
Section 15 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1989/42/contents

Risk Management
There are none.

Consultation

There is no requirement under the Constitution for external
consultation on this item.

Recommendation:

That Council approves the above proposals.
Reason for Proposed Decisions:

To update the Council’s membership arrangements.
Implementation of Decisions

The decisions are for immediate implementation.

List of Background Papers

The Constitution.
Officer Contact

Karen Jones, Assistant Chief Executive and Chief Digital Officer
Contact: k.jones3@npt.gov.uk or telephone 01639 763284

Page 98


http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1989/42/contents
mailto:k.jones3@npt.gov.uk

Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 8

-5-

EXECUTIVE DECISION RECORD
CABINET

23 MAY, 2018

Cabinet Members:

Councillors: C.Clement-Williams, R.G.Jones, D.Jones, E.V.Latham,
A.R.Lockyer, P.D.Richards and A.Wingrave

Officers in Attendance:

H.Jenkins, A.Evans, G.Nutt, C.Furlow and N.Headon

1. EORWARD WORK PROGRAMME 2018

Decision:

That the report be noted.

2. MARGAM CREMATORIUM - MINUTES 19 JANUARY 2018

Noted by Committee.

3. WELSH AUDIT OFFICE CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE FOR THE
AUDIT OF NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
2018-19 IMPROVEMENT PLAN

Decision:

That the report be noted.

230518 Page 103



-6 -
ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2017-18

Decisions:

1.  That Members note the progress made on the Corporate
Governance improvement work undertaken during 2017/18;

2.  That the Annual Governance Statement 2017/2018, contained as
Appendix 1 of the circulated report, be approved subject to the
following amendment to Core Principle B, on Page 28 reading “We
aim to be a transparent Council’;

3.  That the proposed Corporate Governance improvement work to be
undertaken during 2018/2019, be approved.

Reason for Decisions:

For the Annual Governance Statement 2017/2018 to be published as
part of the Council’'s Statement of Accounts.

Implementation of Decisions:

The decisions will be implemented after the three day call in period.

REVENUE OUTTURN AND RESERVES POSITION STATEMENT
2017-18

Decision:

That the Council’s General Fund Revenue Outturn and Reserves
position for 2017/2018, as contained in the circulated report, be
approved.

Reason for Decision:

To agree the Council’'s General Fund Revenue Outturn and Reserves for
2017/2018.

Implementation of Decision:

The decision will be implemented after the three day call in period.

230518 Page 104



-7 -
CAPITAL PROGRAMME OUTTURN 2017-18

Decision:
That the 2017/2018 Capital Programme outturn position, be approved.

Reason for Decision:

To agree the capital outturn position for 2017/18.

Implementation of Decision:

The decision will be implemented after the three day call in period.

PAY AWARD BUDGET VIREMENT 2018/19

Decision:

That the Council’'s proposed budget virements in line with the Council’s
Constitution, be approved.

Reason for Decision:

To update the Councils budget virements in line with the Council’s
constitution.

Implementation of Decision:

The decisions will be implemented after the three day call in period.

CHAIRPERSON

230518 Page 105



This page is intentionally left blank



- 49 -

EXECUTIVE DECISION RECORD
3 MAY 2018

EDUCATION, SKILLS AND CULTURE CABINET BOARD

Cabinet Board Members:

Councillors:  A.R.Lockyer and P.A.Rees (Chairperson)

Officers in Attendance:

A.Evans, |.Guy, R.Gordon, P.Walker and J.Woodman-Ralph

Invited Members:

Councillor A.L.Thomas (Scrutiny Chairperson) and
Councillor C.M.Crowley (Scrutiny Vice Chairperson)

1. APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRPERSON

Agreed that Councillor P.A.Rees be appointed Chairperson for the
meeting.

2. MINUTES OF THE EDUCATION, SKILLS AND CULTURE CABINET

BOARD HELD ON THE 15 MARCH 2018

Noted by Committee.

3. STRATEGIC SCHOOLS IMPROVEMENT PROGRAMME -
ENGAGEMENT OF EXTERNAL CONSULTANCY SERVICES

Members received a correction to the report, Page 10 Paragraph 16, the
report states that the cost represents 0.03% of the anticipated cost of all
Band B proposals, i.e. £67million. The report should have stated 0.3%.

30518 Page 107



- 50 -
Decision:

That delegated authority be granted to the Director of Education, Leisure
and Lifelong Learning to enter into a contract with CPC Project Services
LLP on the terms and conditions set out in the Crown Commercial
Services Framework Agreement for the provision of management
consultancy services for the production of business cases in respect of
Band B of the 21% Century Schools Programme.

Reason for Decision:

To ensure the Council can meet timescales and the standards set by
Welsh Government for the production of business cases in respect of
Band B Schools as part of the 21° Century Schools Programme.

Implementation of Decision:

The decision will be implemented after the three day call in period.

LONG TERM SICKNESS TASKFORCE SCHOOLS UPDATE

Decision:
That the report be noted.

FORMER SANDFIELDS COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOL CARETAKER'S
HOUSE - 74, ST HELIER DRIVE, SANDFIELDS, PORT TALBOT

Decision:

That approval be granted to declare the land and premises at 74, St
Helier Drive, Sandfields, Port Talbot. SA12 7AS as surplus to the
operational requirements of the Education, Leisure and Lifelong Learning
Service.

Reason for Decision:

To declare the former Sandfields Comprehensive School caretaker’'s
house as surplus to the operational requirements of Education, Leisure
and Lifelong Learning Service and enable the Council to obtain a capital
receipt to be re-invested in the Education budget.

30518 Page 108



-51 -

Implementation of Decision:

The decision will be implemented after the 3 day call in period.

ACCESS TO MEETINGS

Decision:

That pursuant to Regulation 4(3) and (5) of Statutory Instrument 2001
No. 2290, the public be excluded for the following item of business which
involved the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in
Paragraph 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act
1972.

THREE QUARTER YEAR PERFORMANCE REVIEW 17 - 18 CELTIC
LEISURE (EXEMPT UNDER PARAGRAPH 14)

Decision:

That the report be noted.

CHAIRPERSON

30518 Page 109



This page is intentionally left blank



-6 -

EXECUTIVE DECISION RECORD
CABINET BOARD - 14 JUNE 2018

EDUCATION, SKILLS AND CULTURE

Cabinet Board Members:

Councillors:  A.R.Lockyer and P.A.Rees (Chairperson)

Officers in Attendance:

A.Thomas, J.Burge, K.Gilbert and J.Woodman-Ralph

1. APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRPERSON

Agreed that Councillor P.A.Rees be appointed Chairperson for the
meeting.

2. MINUTES OF THE EDUCATION, SKILLS AND CULTURE CABINET
BOARD HELD ON THE 3 MAY 2018

Noted by Committee

3. EORWARD WORK PROGRAMME 18/19

Noted by Committee

4. WELSH GOVERNMENT FEMININE HYGIENE GRANT

Decision:

That the report be noted.

140618 Page 111



HEALTHCARE NEEDS POLICY

Decision:

That approval be granted to adopt the Local Authority Healthcare Needs
Policy as contained in Appendix A to the circulated report which will
replace the existing policy adopted in January 2013.

Reason for Decision:

To update and replace the existing Local Authority Healthcare Needs
Policy.

Implementation of Decision:

The decision will be implemented after the three day call in period.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT MEMBERS OF EDUCATION

Decision:

That approval be granted for the following selection criteria and for
delegated authority to be given to the Director of Education, Leisure and
Lifelong Learning to enable the appointment to the Education Appeal
Panel of both Lay Members and Members:

I. Local connections and knowledge of the diverse population within
Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council;
II.  Experience of chairing difficult meetings;
lll.  Members who have experience in the field of Education;
V. Experience or knowledge of legal issues.

Reason for Decision:

To enable the Local Authority to comply with legislative requirements for
the appointment of both Lay Members and Members who have
experience in Education.

Implementation of Decision:

The decision will be implemented after the three day call in period.

140618 Page 112



-8-

SCHOOL TERM DATES 2020/2021

Decision:

That approval be granted for the 2020/2021 school term dates to be
submitted to the Welsh Government.

Reason for Decision:

To enable the Authority to meet its statutory duties.

Implementation of Decision:

The decision will be implemented after the 3 day call in period.

Consultation:

Consultation took place between the 22 March 2018 and 28 May 2018.
Consultees included governing bodies, trade unions and other admission
authorities including those in the relevant area.

No comments were received from neighbouring Authorities
No comments were received from the Trade Unions.

QUARTERLY PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT DATA 2017-2018 -
QUARTER 4 PERFORMANCE (1 APRIL 2017 - 31 MARCH 2018)

Decision:

That the report be noted.

CHAIRPERSON

140618 Page 113



This page is intentionally left blank



-7 -

EXECUTIVE DECISION RECORD
CABINET BOARD - 7 JUNE 2018

SOCIAL CARE, HEALTH AND WELLBEING

Cabinet Board Members:

Councillors:  A.R.Lockyer (Chairperson) and P.D.Richards

Officers in Attendance:

AJarrett, A.J.Thomas, K.Warren and J.Woodman-Ralph
Invitees

Clir. L.Purcell (Scrutiny Chairperson)
ClIr.S.Freeguard (Scrutiny Vice Chairperson)

1. APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRPERSON

Agreed that Councillor P.D.Richards be appointed Chairperson for the
meeting.

2. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS SOCIAL CARE, HEALTH AND
WELLBEING CABINET BOARD HELD ON THE 10 MAY 2018

Noted by Committee

3. FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME 18/19

Noted by Committee

70618 Page 115




-8-

WESTERN BAY SAFEGUARDING BOARD JOINT ANNUAL
BUSINESS PLAN 2018/19

Decision:

Noted by Committee

NATIONAL INTEGRATED HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE
COLLABORATIVE FRAMEWORK FOR YOUNGER ADULTS

Decisions:

1. That approval be granted to use the National Collaborative
Framework for Young Adults in Mental Health and Learning
Disabilities Care Homes and Care Homes with Nursing for NHS
and Local Authorities in Wales.

2. That delegated authority be granted to the Head of Commissioning
Support and Direct Services and the Head of Children and Young
People’s Services to enter into any one off arrangements that may
be required where services are requested under the said
Framework.

Reason for Decisions:

By adopting the National Framework this will help improve local
placement and provider quality with a neutral or beneficial cost to the
authority when compared with non-framework placements.

Implementation of Decisions:

The decision will be implemented after the three day call in period.

ACCESS TO MEETINGS

That pursuant to Regulation 4 (3) and (5) of Statutory Instrument 2001
No. 2290, the public be excluded for the following items of business
which involved the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in
the undermentioned Paragraphs of Part 4 of Schedule 12A to the Local
Government Act 1972.

70618 Page 116



-9-

THE CHILDREN'S HOME (WALES) REGULATIONS 2002 (EXEMPT
UNDER PARAGRAPH 13)

Decision:

That the report be noted.

CHAIRPERSON

70618 Page 117



This page is intentionally left blank



-10 -

EXECUTIVE DECISION RECORD
CABINET BOARD -5 JULY 2018

SOCIAL CARE, HEALTH AND WELLBEING CABINET BOARD

Cabinet Board Members:

Councillors:  P.D.Richards (Chairperson) and D.Jones

Officers in Attendance:

AJarrett, J.Hodges, Ms.K.Warren and J.Woodman-Ralph

1. APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRPERSON

Agreed that Councillor P.D.Richards be appointed Chairperson for the
meeting.

2. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

That the minutes of the 7 June 2018 be noted by Committee.

3. YOUNG CARERS STRATEGY ANNUAL UPDATE YEAR 1

Decision:

Noted by Committee.

4. OCCUPATION OF 36 FORGE ROAD BY DYFFRYN CHILDREN'S
COMMUNITY TEAM

Decisions:

1. That approval be granted to enter into an agreement for the
occupation of 36 Forge Road by Dyffryn Children’s Community
Team,;

50718 Page 119



-11 -

2. To be reviewed with the Head of Property and Regeneration on or
the 31 July 2020 if required on terms and conditions to be agreed
by the Head of Children and Young People Services in consultation
with the Head of Property and Regeneration.

Reason for Decisions:

To enable Children and Young People’s Services to enter into an

agreement to occupy Forge Road, Port Talbot SA13 1PA so that the
service can continue to provide an informal and accessible space to
enable direct working with children, young people and their families.

Implementation of Decisions:

The decision will be implemented after the three day call in period.

4TH QUARTER PERFORMANCE REPORT

Decision:

Noted by Committee

MONITORING THE PERFORMANCE AND PROGRESS OF THE
WESTERN BAY REGIONAL ADOPTION SERVICE

Decision:

Noted by Committee

FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME 18/19

Decision:

Noted by Committee.

50718 Page 120



-12 -

ACCESS TO MEETINGS

Decision:

That pursuant to Regulations 4(3) and (5) of Statutory Instrument 2001
N0.2290, the public be excluded for the following items of business
which involved the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in
Paragraph 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act
1972.

HILLSIDE MANAGERS REPORT

Decision:

Noted by Committee.

CHAIRPERSON

50718 Page 121



This page is intentionally left blank



-6 -

EXECUTIVE DECISION RECORD

CABINET BOARD - 22 JUNE 2018

REGENERATION AND SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT CABINET
BOARD

Cabinet Board Members:

Councillors: D.W.Davies and A.Wingrave (Chairperson)

Officers in Attendance:

S.Brennan, G.Evans, M.Shaw and T.Davies

Vice Chair of Scrutiny:

Councillor: L.Jones

1. APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRPERSON

Agreed that Councillor A.Wingrave be appointed Chairperson for the
meeting.

2. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

That the minutes of the 18 May 2018 be noted by the Committee.

3. QUARTER 4 PERFORMANCE MONITORING

Decision:

That the monitoring report be noted.

220618 Page 123




ENFORCEMENT POLICY

Decision:

That the Environmental Health and Trading Standards Enforcement
Policy (Appendix 1 to the circulated report) be approved.

Reason for Decision:

To ensure that consistent enforcement action is taken and the principles
of the Regulators’ Code and other published guidance are followed.

Implementation of Decision:

The decision will be implemented after the three day call in period.

ALLEGED PUBLIC FOOTPATH - GLYNNEATH

Decision:

That no modification order be made for the alleged public footpath along
the path to the rear of house No’s 11 to 22 Park Avenue and No. 8
Earlsfield Close in the Community of Glynneath (as detailed in the
circulated report).

Reasons for Decision:

(a) The path between point A and point F (Park Avenue) during the
relevant period varied and so the same route was not in use to
satisfy the minimum period of 20 years uninterrupted use;

(b) There is no evidence that point C joined a public highway
throughout the relevant period and so the claimed public path did
not terminate on a public highway during the relevant period;

(c) The application does not specify any other point east of point C as
a place of public resort nor is there any consensus as to whether
that point may have been during the relevant period,

(d) The amount of people supporting this application within the

relevant period is too low to be able to conclude that this can
represent the public at large.

220618 Page 124



Implementation of Decision:

The decision will be implemented after the three day call in period.

Consultation:

This item has been subject to external consultation.

FUTURE TOURISM PROVISION WITHIN NEATH PORT TALBOT
COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

Decision:

That the remit of, and resources required, to establish a new Tourism
Unit, as set out in the circulated report, be approved.

Reason for Decision:

To deliver the resources required to ensure the growth of tourism as an
important sector of the local economy.

Implementation of Decision:

The decision is an urgent one for immediate implementation. The
Chairperson of the Scrutiny Committee had agreed to this course of
action, and therefore there would be no call in of this decision.

Consultation:

This item has been subject to external consultation.

ENERGY PERFORMANCE REPORT 201/-18

Decision:

That the report be noted.

220618 Page 125



10.

11.

12.

-9-
FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME 2018/19

Decision:

That the Forward Work Programme be noted.

ACCESS TO MEETINGS

RESOLVED: That pursuant to Regulation 4(3) and (5) of Statutory
Instrument 2001 No. 2290, the public be excluded for
the following item of business which involved the likely
disclosure of exempt information as defined in
Paragraph 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A to the Local
Government Act 1972.

SOCIAL HOUSING GRANT (SHG), HOUSING FINANCE GRANT
(HEG) AND RECYCLED CAPITAL GRANT (RCG) PROGRAMME
2018-21

Decision:

That the report be noted.

PORT TALBOT PERIPHERAL DISTRIBUTOR ROAD PHASE 2 -
EXTENSION OF TIME

Decision:
That the time limit to negotiate the claim from Associated British Ports

Holdings Ltd under Port Talbot Peripheral Distributor Road Phase 2, be
extended to 31 December 2018.

TATA SPORTS AND SOCIAL CLUB, MARGAM

Decision:

That the revised terms and conditions for the acquisition of land and
various rights, from Tata and Tata Sports and Social Club required as
part of the Port Talbot PDR Phase 2 Scheme, as detailed in the private
circulated report, be approved.

220618 Page 126



14.

-10 -

Reason for Decision:

To pay compensation to the affected parties as a result of the Port Talbot
Peripheral Distributor Road Phase 2 Scheme.

Implementation of Decision:

The decision will be implemented after the three day call in period.

Consultation:

The Local Ward Member has been consulted.

FORMER PLAYING FIELD AT PEN YR HEOL, SKEWEN, NEATH

Decision:

That the grant of a fixed short term lease to Skewen Rugby Football Club
Ltd in respect of the former playing field at Pen yr Heol Skewen Neath,
as detailed in the private circulated report, be approved.

Reason for Decision:

To allow the playing field to be used by the club, for the benefit of the
local community.

Implementation of Decision:

The decision will be implemented after the three day call in period.

Consultation:

This item will be subject to external consultation.

CHAIRPERSON

220618 Page 127



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 128



-1 -

EXECUTIVE DECISION RECORD

CABINET BOARD - 25 MAY 2018

STREETSCENE AND ENGINEERING CABINET BOARD

Cabinet Board Members:

Councillors:  E.V.Latham (Chairperson) and A.Wingrave

Officers in Attendance:

D.Giriffiths, M.Roberts, S.Curran, J.Davies and T.Davies

Chair and Vice Chair of Scrutiny:

Councillors: S.Penry and S.ap.Dafydd

1. APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRPERSON

Agreed that Councillor E.V.Latham be appointed Chairperson for the
meeting.

2. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS STREETSCENE AND ENGINEERING
CABINET BOARD HELD 13 APRIL, 2018

Noted by the Committee.

3. ELOOD RISK MANAGEMENT PLAN UPDATE

Decision:

That the report be noted.

250518 Page 129




-2
INFORMATION ON REFUSE AND RECYCLING COLLECTIONS

Decision:

That the report be noted.

TRAFFIC ORDER - BRYNMORGRUG, ALLTWEN

Decision:

That the Legal Order for the implementation of a No Waiting At Any Time
Order on Brynmorgrug and Lon Hir and Edward Street Link Lane,
Alltwen, be advertised and subject to there being no objections, the
Order be implemented.

Reason for Decision:

To prevent indiscriminate parking in the interest of road safety.

Implementation of Decision:

The decision will be implemented after the three day call in period.

Consultation:

A consultation exercise will be carried out when the scheme is
advertised.

TRAFFIC ORDER - HEOL COMPTON AND VILLIERS ROAD,
SKEWEN

Decision:

That the objections be over ruled, the scheme be implemented as
advertised (No Waiting at Any Time Order at Heol Compton and Villiers
Road, Skewen, as detailed at Appendix A to the circulated report) and
the objectors informed accordingly.

Reason for Decision:

To prevent indiscriminate parking in the interest of highway safety.

250518 Page 130



Implementation of Decision:

The decision will be implemented after the three day call in period.

Consultation:

This item has been subject to external consultation.

TRAFFIC ORDER - LAUREL AVENUE, LABURNUM AVENUE AND
CHESTNUT ROAD, BAGLAN

Decision:

That the Legal Order for the implementation of a No Waiting at Any Time
Order at Laurel Avenue, Laburnum Avenue and Chestnut Road, Baglan
(Appendix A to the circulated report) be advertised, and subject to there
being no objections, the Order be implemented.

Reason for Decision:

To prevent indiscriminate parking in the interest of road safety.

Implementation of Decision:

The decision will be implemented after the three day call in period.

Consultation:

A consultation exercise will be carried out when the scheme is
advertised.

TRAFFIC ORDER - B4242 PONTNEATHVAUGHAN ROAD, PONT
NEDD FECHAN, GLYNNEATH

Decision:

That the Legal Orders for No Waiting at Any Time Traffic Regulation
Order and No Parking on Footway Traffic Regulation Order at the B4242
Pontneathvaughan Road, Pont Nedd Fechan, Glynneath, be advertised,
(Appendix A to the circulated report) be advertised, and subject to there
being no objections, the Order be implemented.

250518 Page 131



10.

Reason for Decision:

To prevent indiscriminate parking in the interest of highway safety.

Implementation of Decision:

The decision will be implemented after the three day call in period.

Consultation:

A consultation exercise will be carried out when the scheme is
advertised.

STOPPING UP ORDER - FAIRFIELD WAY, NEATH

Decision:

That authority be delegated to the Director of Environment and the Head
of Engineering and Transport to submit an application for a Stopping Up
and Diversion of Highways under Section 247 of the Town and Country

Planning Act 1990 to the Welsh Government, for Fairfield Way, Neath.

Reason for Decision:

To allow development of the Neath Town Centre Redevelopment.

Implementation of Decision:

The decision will be implemented after the three day call in period.

TRAFFIC ORDERS - WATER STREET AND ST. DAVID’S STREET,
NEATH

Decision:

That the Traffic Regulation Orders for Water Street and St. David’s
Street, Neath (as detailed at Appendix A to the circulated report), be
advertised, and subject to there being no objections, the Orders be
implemented.

250518 Page 132



11.

Reason for Decision:

To prevent indiscriminate parking and prevent a right turn manoeuvre
into St. David’s Street in the interest of highway safety.

Implementation of Decision:

The decision will be implemented after the three day call in period.

Consultation:

A consultation exercise will be carried out when the scheme is
advertised.

TRAFFIC ORDERS - TY FRY ROAD, BERTHA ROAD AND ROAD
ADJACENT TO 93 AND 95 BEECHWOOD ROAD, MARGAM AND
TAIBACH

Decision:

That the Legal Orders for the implementation of a No Waiting, Loading or
Unloading at Any Time Order on Ty Fry Road, Bertha Road and the road
adjacent to 93 and 95 Beechwood Road, a One Way and No Entry Order
on Bertha Road and three plateaus on Bertha Road, Margam (as
detailed at Appendices A, B, C and D to the circulated report) be
advertised, and subject to there being no objections, the Orders be
implemented.

Reason for Decision:

To prevent indiscriminate parking and to assist in the flow of traffic in the
interest of road safety.

Implementation of Decision:

The decision will be implemented after the three day call in period.

Consultation:

A consultation exercise will be carried out when the scheme is
advertised.

250518 Page 133



12.

13.

14.

-6 -
TRAFFIC ORDER - WENHAM PLACE, NEATH

Decision:

That the Legal Orders for No Waiting, No Loading or Unloading at Any
Time Traffic Regulation Order at Hafod Residential Home, Wenham
Place, Neath, (as detailed at Appendix A to the circulated report) be
advertised, and subject to there being no objections, the Orders be
implemented.

Reason for Decision:

To prevent indiscriminate parking in the interest of highway safety.

Implementation of Decision:

The decision will be implemented after the three day call in period.

Consultation:

A consultation exercise will be carried out when the scheme is
advertised.

SUMMARY OF WELSH GOVERNMENT GRANT APPROVALS
RECEIVED FOR HIGHWAYS AND TRANSPORT 2018-2019

Decision:

That the report be noted.

TRAFFIC ORDERS - GLAN YR AFON AND ST. DAVID’S ROAD,
YSTALYFERA

Decision:

That the objections be over ruled, the proposed scheme be implemented
as advertised (Prohibition of Waiting, Loading and Unloading at Any
Time and Traffic Calming Measures Traffic Regulation Order at Glan Yr
Afon and St. David’s Road, Ystalyfera, as detailed at Appendix A to the
circulated report) and the objectors be informed accordingly.

250518 Page 134



Reason for Decision:

To reduce traffic speed and keep the turning head area (as shown at
Appendix A to the circulated report) free from parked vehicles in the
interest of road safety.

Implementation of Decision:

The decision will be implemented after the three day call in period.

Consultation:

This item has been subject to external consultation.

CHAIRPERSON

250518 Page 135



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 136



	Agenda
	 Civic Year [2018/19]                                                                                        30 May 2018
	Minutes

	5 City Deal
	City Deal Report 270618 Appendix 1, 27/06/2018 Cabinet
	City Deal Report 270618 Appendix 3, 27/06/2018 Cabinet
	City Deal Report 270618 Appendix 4, 27/06/2018 Cabinet
	Joint Scrutiny City Deal Report

	7 Membership Arrangements
	8 To receive the following-and any questions raised by Members, or any matters to be raised by Cabinet Members:-
	Minutes , 03/05/2018 Education, Skills and Culture Cabinet Board
	Minutes , 14/06/2018 Education, Skills and Culture Cabinet Board
	Minutes , 07/06/2018 Social Care, Health and Wellbeing Cabinet Board
	Minutes , 05/07/2018 Social Care, Health and Wellbeing Cabinet Board
	Minutes Public Pack, 22/06/2018 Regeneration and Sustainable Development Cabinet Board
	Minutes

	Minutes Public Pack, 25/05/2018 Streetscene and Engineering Cabinet Board
	Minutes



